
C l i f f i e  Smith Patterson's brother  Sgt. E. H. Smith. 
He served in World War I in France as a machine gunner. 
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Preface 

This m r i p t  is a product of a tape-recorded interview conducted by 
Jean W f e  for the Oral History Office in D e c d e x ,  1984. Jean Wauffe 
transcribed and edited the transcript. Cliffie Smlth Patterson r e v i d  
the transcript. 

Clif f i e  Smith Patterson w s  born in LaClede County, Missouri, ktober 29, 
1895. She had just celebrated her ninetieth birtMay shortly before this 
interview bok place. Cliffie w s  the third generatian of schoolteachers 
in her family, her son and ganddau&ters f o l l d  in her footsteps, 

five generations of teachers, a fact she is very p r d  of. Stve 
rminisces about her school days, her teaching days, and her children's 
ducation, and how things have changed wer the yeaxs , 

Readers of the oral history mmir  should bear in mind that it i s  a 
transcript of the spoken wrd, and that the interviewer, narrator and 
editor mq&t to preserve the S o d ,  cowersational style that i s  
inherents in such historical sources. Sangamn State University is not 
responsible for the factual accuracy of the m i r ,  nor for views 
expressed therein; these are for the reader to judge. 

The mmwcript my be read, quoted and cited freely, I t  may not be 
x e p r d ~ e d  in 4mle or in part by any means, electronic or mechanical, 
without pern'dssion in writing from the Oral History Office, Sang= 
State Wersity , Springfield, Illinois, 62708. 



Cliffie Smith Patterson, ktober 3,  1984, 

Jean HaufEe, Intervie=. 

Q: Now, when =re you born, Cliffie? Do you wmt to t e l l  us that? 
(laughs 

I w s  born October the 29th, 1895. 

18952 

And that school ~s taken in, that picture m s  taken in 1892. 

That ws a l i t t l e  before you Ere born then? 

It certainly was. 

Y o u r  dad w s  a school teacher? 

For 13 years, then 13 years he ran for Recorder of LaClede Caunty. 

%t ms LaClde County, Missouri . . . 
Anl was mmhatd [elected] and his health--is that recording there? 

Yes. That's okay. That's what E want. 

And his health wasn't too god, about the end of his term, so w 
raved back to the farm. k wre farmrs to s t a r t  and then t\ne, as I say, 
w w e d  to tom, and his health wisn't very good and then = rmved to 
Colorado, k ws in Colorado tw years. But s t i l l  his health s t i l l  
wasn't very good, but then = came back to Lebanon. %Is k e  w 
lived, in Lebanon. That's where my parents are buried. Ard before he 
passed-he knew that his l i f e  m s  short and he wanted Blanche and I, my 
sister and I, to go live w i t h  my gr-ther, until--he knew he was going 
to be gone-yau h o w .  And w had a sale--oh, vie had a sale before w 
v a t  to Colorado, after w m e d  to the country, back to  the country. 
And, did I tell you that e four children =re born there in LaClede 
h m t y ?  

Q: Mutt: are p u r  siblings' maes here? 

A: k11, we =re all *re born there in the house. I guess that ws on 
the place when Poppa bought it. They don't say Poppa a n p r e ,  either, do 
they? (laughs) 
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Q: No, they don't, do they? 

A: kll, thenhe built another hause on the same farm, and then it was 
fran there tha t  e mt to Lebanon. 

Q: I see, and you had three brothers and sisters? 

A: I had t w  brothers and one sister. 

Q: k e  they older or younger than you? 

A: I m s  next to  the youngest. 

Q: Wm i a s  the oldest? 

A: l2lmmd. 

Q: bhen w s  he born, about? 

A: He was born in 1891. 

Q: b i b  ws m? 

A: A d  my brother, Claude, w s  born in 1893. 

Q: 1893? 

A: 1893. And Cliffie was born 1895, and Blanche w s  born 1897. 

Q: Are they are still mnderhg a r d  with us? 

A: What? 

Q: Are they all still alive, just l ike  you? 

A: I'm the only one that's l e f t .  And my mther, her name ms Cook. A d  
her grandmother's name was . . . h t  ms theb name . . . 
Q: Let's see, I have Wanen, Mary Warren here. Here's the chart, can 
yw read the writing on there? 

A: It w m  -gar& h e r .  

Q: Oh, okay. We don't have it on this sheet then. 

A: No. She m s  the mther of my grandfather. 

Q: Oh. 

A: k t  it's Margaret W e r .  

Q: h e r ,  okay. 
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A: M-0-U-S-E-R, I finally get it. 

A: Margaret Mouser, and they said that she married r q  grandfather ' s 
father, and she had a brogue when she talked, she never got rid of it. 

Q: She rmst have been Irish? 

A: She's German1 

Q: Oh, okay. 

A: And on my mther's side, oh, let's see, on my mther's side, her 
people c a m  frm Englad. And there is a lady i n  kssachusetts that is 
writing a bwk. She belongs to that Cook strain ard she's writing a book 
relative to our Cooks ard she's been wer t o  Q l a n d ,  I think about three 
times lookkg up raaterial . I 'm  q c t i n g  to  get that book pretty soon. 

Q: Yes, that m l d  be nice. Did your mther die when you were young? 
You didn ' t say mch a b u t  her. 

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: I dssed that. 

A: I wts just six. 

Q: h t  did she die of? She was so young. 

A: A t  that time they didn't  have the doctors l ike they have today. And 
the way I've heard it, they talked l ike it wts quick consumption. They 
don't c a l l  it consumption anymre, they call it TB. 

Q: I 've heard the quick consumption term. 

A: Well, Iremrkr my mther, w had txo harries there ink-. At 
the f i r s t  be, it was out at the edge, pretty close to the edge af town 
d w had a d l  acreage and they had fruit on it. I remember, althou& 
w viere -11, I r d r  my mther going out d picking berries and 
things a d  when she cam horn, she sat in the, wll, a doorway be- 
the kitchen ard--el1 it msn ' t  a screened-in porch, h t  it ms f i l led  
in. Like a l i t t le roan. She w so tired, she sat d m  there a d  that 

of her sickness, And I wll r d r  ue had a colored 
--Mrs. Miller--and anyway when my rmther passed amy 

then, she passed away December 31, 1903. It m s  Decclmber , wll , I guess 
I w about seven. Well, anyway, Poppa bou&t a place up closer to, 
nearer the lxlsiness part of the tom. 

I 
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Q: He ws Caunty Clerk at this tine? 

A: Oh, no. 

Q: kt at this t k ?  

A: He ws Recorder of Deeds. 

Q: RBcordev of Deeds at this time? 

A: Yes. I rPmPmber e were still on the farm, he had a man, it ms a 
young n m  that did the farm wrk, and had a lo t  of peach seeds and he 
told that guy to go out d plant than ard he dug a hole ard planted a l l  
of them in one hole. (lau&s) 

Q: Did yous father mke him replant them? 

A: 'Ihat's all I r d r  a b u t  it. 

Q: Okay. 

A: 'Ihatls all I r d r  about, lmt wsn't that s a n e t h i n g ?  

Q: He planted them all i n  one place? 

A: He just wmt out there and dug a hole ard pt the dmle outfit in 
there. 

Q: k asn ' t  about to mrk too hard. tEow lcmg m s  your father Recorder 
of Deeds of LaClede County? 

A: Just four years. 

Q: Jwt the one term. 

A: Just &--that1 s &en his health wsn't very good. He m s  only 43 
when he passed away. 

Q: I howhe m s  young. Wt year w s  it, do you recall ,  that you wnt 
to Colorado? buld this have been after your mther died? 

A: cJh, yes. k had a stepmother then. I& hardly ever mt ioned her. 
( lmgt'ls) 

Q: I don1 t mention m i n e ,  either. (lau&s) 

A: Seems like she's not in the family. Wzt, see, before Poppa died, he 
m t e d  Blanche a d  I to  be down there with his mther. See, our mtha 

Q: Naw w s  his mther still in IaClede Caunty or where a s  she? 

A: Oh, e w all in LaClede Caunty. That w the only place. But r 
talking about my grandfather Cook, didn't yau wder the other day i f  
was married? 
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Q: Yes.  

A: He was only 27 when he wnt  out there, and he got married when he 
c- h. 

Q: Oh, I see. 

A: bhat else ywu went rxle to te l l  yau? 

Q: W e l l ,  I kas kind of uandering--what k h d  of pets did you have whep 
you =we on the farm? Did y m  have cats and dogs? 

A: And do you h a w  when ny father was teaching school, my rmther d d  
put on her coat and whatever she had on her head--a scarf--and go out a d  
milk the cows. 

Q: She did? 

Q: Did you ever d l k  cows when you =re young? 

A: Oh, yes. We had c o w  and horses and I remnhr when w mt to 
Lebanon, my dad bought a surrey. 

Q: kll, that was fancy, msn't it? 

A: It ws fancy. I think it had fringe around on top. 

Q: Just like the m i e ?  

A: And, le t ' s  see, it m s  a me horse affair. 

Q: h t  was the horse's n-? Do you remaher? 

A: Charlie, I think. (laughter) 

Q: Did ywu start to school in the country or did you go to  school in 
Lnbanon? 

A: Qnt to school at Lebanon. And my s e c d  grade teacher there at  
Lebanon--she took mine and Blanche's pictures near where w all  vent to 
the batkocm-ell, w e  didn't have no bathroan then. bk had a l i t t le  
tuilding on the outside where the boys had theheir building a d  w had our 
building,. 

Q: Yes, they still had that h e n  I was in school. 

A: And, I think they got their mter out of a pnnp. 

Q: b 1 d n ' t  be surprised. 

A: A n ~ y  , my second grade teacher, she took mine and Blanche ' s pictyres 
and at that tine, when people had a &istau tree, it was always at @ 
church. 



Log schoolhouse where C l i f f i e  Smi th  Patterson's father t a u g h t  
in LaClede County, M i s s o u r i  ca.  1890. Mr. S m i t h  is standing 
in the doorway . 

C l i f f i e  Smith P a t t e r s o n  and h e r  sister Blanche ca. 1901 
when C l i f f i e  was i n  t h e  second grade .  
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Q: 'Izlat ms the only place that had a Christmas tree? 

A: Well, I think so. (laughter) 'Ihat's a l l  I r d r .  

Q: You didn' t have one at  harae? 

A: Wlt anyway there at the Christian mwch there a t  Lebanon, my secpnd 
gade  teacher plt that picture on the tree for me. 

Q: Well, that was nice. 

A: I'll show it to you after a while. 

Q: okay. 

A: I have the original picture that she took. k11, h t  else w i l l  I 
t e l l  you? 

Q: W e l l ,  what was the school like? Was it a big sch~ol  , w s  it a one-roan 
school? 

A: Oh, inkbanon? 

Q: Yes. 

A: Oh no, it had upstairs and damstairs a d  a l l .  

Q: Oh, separate classes? 

A: I think it m s  the Vick Schml. 

Q: Oh, that was just really &ern. 

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: And up-to-date here. 

A: And at that time people had the oudoor toilets. 

Q: Yes, that's not a l l  that far my. I remember those. 

A: You can 1:- that? 

Q: Yes, afraid so, Okay. 

A: Well, now, a t  else? 

Q: You stayed in . . . 
A: bk m s  in  Colorado tm yars just for Poppa's health and then w same 
back t o  Lebanon. 

Q: And you mt to school there? Did pu go t o  high school there in 
Lebanon? 
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A: All the high school that I had I got in  college. And listen, at that 
t i r e ,  they had hi& school mrk in the grade schools. We had algebra and 
everything. 

Q: Did you go to grade school eight years or did you go longer? 

A: . . . d, I had an umle that m s  a teacher, and before we had t o  
take au: teacher' s examination, and before e took that teacher's 
examination, Uncle kank d d  have us to  core wer--my cousin and I-- 
because w e  wmted to take the examination, he wanted to train us. And = 
wmt t o  kbanon--and now r d r  , Poppa and Mcmm a s  gone. 

Q: Yes. 

A: k Wnt to Lebanon, and believe it or not, w wnt in a wgon. 

Q: Oh, yes. 

A: Ucle Joe took k l a  and I up there a d  ~ s e  took the teacher's exadnation 
and then if you'd pass the teacher's examhation you could teach school. 
You'd get a teacher's certificate. 

Q: Now had y m  been to  college yet, or you just . . . 
A: I wmt to college after that, 

Q: Oh, okay. Just out of your grade schcml? 

A: Southest, -11, i t 's  called Southwst Teacher's College mw, but at 
that time they called it Teacher's N o d ,  but they've changd it to  
Southest  Missauri now. 

Q: Is t h i s  in Lebanon? 

A: A l l  right, I t a t  one year . . . just one year. My sister tau@ 
tm. And then I stayed w i t h  my great-grandfather and grandmther . . . 
just before I got married. Got married after I wmt dawn there to stay 
with them. 

Q: Ncrw &re =re they? 

A: They was at  Redtop, Mssouri. 

Q: Now is that in Dallas Caunty? 

A: lhat w Dallas. Yau hew about that too, don' t you? (laughs) 

Q: I looked in the atlas t o  see where these counties Ere. 

A: a, yes. k11 then when Herve and I got mawried . . . 
Q: Naw did you meet him at college? *re did you meet him? 



Cliffie S&th Patterson 

A: I m t  to college before I got mrried. 

Q: I knw, but did you m e t  him, meet Herve at college? 

A: I mt him there at my great-grandfather's and my great-grandmther 's 
h o ~ .  W e l l ,  it ws not their h, it was my aunt by miage, her sister 
i s  the one that got us together. All right, then his f i r s t  mrk-after 
m got married--he was the conductor on a streetcar. 

I 
I Q: In Redtop? 

I 
I 

A: Fb, no, no, in Springfield. 

Q: Oh, okay. 

A: And because his brothers m s  out here a l l  farmin% a r d  M t  . Pulaski, 
you know, Herve didn't like that, when he was  raised up in the country, 
being a streetcar mtorman. A l l  right then, then w cane out here. 

Q: What year d d  that have been? 

A: All right, then, v a  cam out here, as I said, l e t  IIE see--I have t o  
think a minute. But he was on the streetcar, he wrked for the traction 
ccnrrpany, a d  as I said w c e  out here. And he came on a freight train 
carrying cyus . . . I think VE had txm cows and a w e  horses. 

Q: bhat Ere the cows' m s ?  Do you renember? 

A: Oh, heavens, no. I don't remember that. But: anyway, Steve Patterson, 
Heme's brother, got us a place mt here, out be M t  . Pulaski there, and 
we w e  there five years on that place, 

1 Q: bho cmned the place? 

A: h d  the man that  had bought the place, he w s  renting and he owd 
mmey but he bat that place. A l l  ri&t, after m =re there five 
years his sister lost  their Easm over by Elkhart .  W e l l ,  anyway, Hewe 
wanted to come out here on account of the other boys being out here. 
Well, then a man called us up that had a farm fm rent. And he's the guy 
that everybody hated. (l-ter) 

A: Well, m ~ y ,  he said he saw--= even had our sale bi l l s  printed, 

Q: You wxe all ready to quit farming k? 

A: bkdidn' twantto. 

Q: But you didn't  have a choice, looked like. 

A: But the mm that place, his sister and her husband had lost  their 
place, and he cried vhen he told us that he wuld have to l e t  his sis r 
have it because he said, "She had wney when I didn't have mney . " u: I 
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right, this other mn up there, betwen M t  . atlaski and Latham, he called 
us d he said he had a place, so R m t  aver there and m w s  wer 
there five years, every year e w s  lookbg for another place. 

Q: You didn't l i k e  him either? 

A: k didn't like him. All right, there was a man called TRimbach phat 
had a fa rm up close to Latham. And he lived on it but the farm that 'he 
wanted us to take was closer t o  M t .  Pulaski than it was to Latham. kt 
the kids f i r s t  had to start to school i n  Latham because they had us in 
that district .  Wasn't that &l. 

Q: That's always an aggravation. 

A: b t  anyway, w got wer that because Mr. Ladenbill, you've heard of 
him, hasren't you? 

Q: Oh, I remdxx Mr. Lukenbill. 

A: Oh, yes, he used to visit all the schools, *11, le t ' s  see--how m s  
that nw-oh, he said he'd let us be in the district 05 M t .  Pulaski 
because m e r e  the only ones around there that a s  SO interested in 
their  kids. 

Q: So they didn't  have t o  go to Lathan? 

A: And he said this, "Don't ask me," in his last term because he was 
going rn have be re-elected , says, "because I'll have to go 
electioneering again." (lau&ter) Ard w didn't ask him, just one year 
w had to pay. And now M t ,  Pulaski or Latham, the Lab dis tc ic t  thpt 
E was in when they had to go to  school there, it was put in M t .  Pulapki 
so our kids had to go to  M t .  Pulaski b high school. I 

Q: They do change the districts.  

A: lhat was terr ible.  And w w s  closer to  M t  . Rzlaski. And, anyway, 
w got this Mr. k-h--yes, L e ~ h - w n t d  us to take one of his 
farms and it m s  closer to  EZt. Pulaski than it w s  t o  Latham and = -re 
there 32 years. 

Q: W e l l ,  that's whexe I remrkr you living, isn't . . . 
A: Ard w had no contract . . . and wsn't that sarxlethhg? And e never 
had to w e .  

Q: %t was  samething ta stay on a fkrm for 32 years. 

A: Thirty-- years. And the tw grandsons Writed that farm and , . 

Q: The Leimbach grandsons? 

A: Leimbach' s grandsons, And they had been uver here to visit  us. 
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Q: Wer here, to  this place? 

A: Wer here, at  this place, and now their husbands--the kimbach 
grandsons, they both died-and both of their wmm have been wer here to 
see us. 

Q: They m t  have real ly liked yau. 

A: Well, and then b n  me--his  *a1 was in M t  . Pulaski, or in 
Lincoln--one of than was sick before he passed awiy, but they cane to 
that funeral. 

Q: I'll declare. mile you =re on kimbach' s farm, w d d  that have 
been during the depression? In the thirties, 193081 

A: Well, sure, it m s  long about that time, msn't it? 

Q: Yes, thmgs got really bad. What did you get for crops back then . . 

A: Yes, R h a w  all  about that depression. 

Q: Yes, What was the lowst price p ever got for corn durhg the 
depression? Can you w&er that? 

A: Oh, I don't lasow h t  it was . . . now that 's terrible that I can't 
Ulink. . K e n n e t h b m l d . .  . 
Q: 'Ihat 's a long time ago to ask a question l ike  that. 

A: As I say, we =re there 32 yeaxs, and w never had to have a contract 
and R didn't have to m e .  

Q: Did you farm on halves or what . . . 
A: Yes. 

Q: Or how did it wrk? It msn't . . . 
A: We farmed on halves. 

Q: Now they do cash rent. 

A: Yes. And now I believe--I forget--= had a small acreage in  a pasture, 
and I believe at that time all w h d  to  pay was ten dollars on whole 
zmmlnt. 

Q: Did y m  keep livestock in that or . . . 
A: Yes. And VE had a l i t t l e  h i l d i n g  down there that the cows could go 
in, you know. 

Q: &re they milk c m  or beef cows? 
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A: Clh, they m s  milk cows, and KE! had a cream separator, you know. 

Q: Oh, yes. You sold milk then? 

A: We didn't sell milk then, PE just sold cream. 

Q: Oh, nust sold the cream, You didn't s e l l  the milk? 

A: Yes. k t  the milk. 

Q: Oh, w used t o  s e l l  the milk too. 

A: W e l l ,  you lived in lighter days. 

Q: (laughs) A different time. 

A: A la ter  day. (laughs) 

Q: Did you sell eggs? Did y m  have chickens or did you jus t  have chickens 
for yourself? 

A: Oh havens, yes. Almys had chickens. 

Q: D i d  you make butter out of your o m  crem? I can remenher Man doing 
that. 

A: Your nun doing what? 

Q: Making butter f rom the cream. Did you do that?  

A: Oh, yes, w d e  butter d everything. 

Q: So you didn't have to go to tom and buy all those things. 

A: I always had a big garden. 

Q: I was going to say you had to can then, you didn't have a freezer did 
you? Early? 

A: Oh, heavens no! Oh. no, w had the freezer over haw though. 

Q: Yes. What kind of things did you can, do you remaher? 

A: b t ?  

Q: W t  kind of vegetables and things--what all did yrxl can when you plt - UP? 
A: I '11 have to tell sarnething about that canning deal. Now my ham--I '11 
shaw you a p i c m e  a f t e r  a while--= had an upstairs. That's when my 
mther v a s  alive. And you how she'd wen dry p r m p b ?  

Q: Maw did she do it? Do you r d r ?  
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A: I r d r  hex cutting it in l i t t l e  circles and wuld hang it wer-I 
don't how what it ws--iihethex it ws a rope or a str ing or what it was. 
Nar w n ' t  that sanaetbhg? 

Q: And just leave it to dry? that wuld she do w i t h  dried pumpkin after  
it was . . . 
A: I don't b. I really don't huw. And I do +&er my mther rmst 
have passed away in the ni&t, k t  the naf morning he said to rn children, 
he said, 'Your mther is in heaven this morning." That's h way he said 
it, 

Q: lhat was a nice way to put it, wasn't i t ?  

A: kll, yes, but you how yuu begin . . . 
Q: It ' s hard for children. 

A: You begin to  kind of wnder too, you haw. &It that's exactly what 
he said, 

Q: Did he h e  consumption too? 

A: Have a t ?  

Q: TXd your father have consumption? 

A: No. No, no, no. It ties heart trouble. I want to  tell you . , . I 
ranemher d x m  my father taught school not too far from hom. ell, it 
mi@ be quite a lit t le ways, too. k t  he had to ride his horse when the 
river was up to get hrme. 

Q: He'd have to cross t h i s  river? 

A: To cross t%se river, his school w s  across the river. And I think on 
Friday ni&t thm, I think he c- came; but the river was up, he'd ride 
that horse sross that. And Grandma almys said--his mother--that he 
just q s e d  himself. 

Q: IJe got too rmch bad wather? 

A: Now thin, he was only 43 years old and he had a f m i l y  and he raised 
those four kids. And going, and then Wordex of LaClede County, I think 
it was a l l  too rmch fox him. 

Q: Did he have to swim the horse across the river so that he got w t ?  

A: Sure1 His clothes would be wt. I think they said they would even 
befrozeonhimsometimes. Nowimaginesuchasthat. 

Q: There's not too rrmy people do that now. 

A: &11, a t  that time, people didn't l ive  so long either. 
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Q: No, but still that w s  young even b r  that t ime .  

A: Yes, oh yes. 

Q: Let's see, &at you've got in the m y  of pictures here. Let's t&k 
about those a l i t t l e  bi t .  

A: W e l l ,  l e t ' s  see. k t ' s  see. You knew I mt may to  school. Did 
you put that donn? 

Q: Yes, yes, I think so. Jhw long wxe you i n  school? Waw 1% did you 
go to college? 

A: I think about five mths . . . I want to  t e l l  you, they taught a lot  
of subjects when yau ww in the grade school like they do in hi& w h o 1  
today. 

Q: That's what I've heard, that it was a lo t  different then. You 
learned wre.  

A: W e l l ,  I should say so. And you said you want to  take the picture of 
that, didn't you? 

Q: Yes, I mt a copy of that  after a b i t  here. 

A: Oh, I mnt to  tell yau this . . . 
Q: Okay. 

A: I have traced a lot  of my relatives and a lot  of them care fim Nprth 
Carolina. They c a w  f i rm North Carolina into Tennessee, and my grandpther 
on my kther' s side, was born in Bradley Caunty , Tennessee. A l l  right. 
Some of these relatives that-m11, one of them was a Signex-of m h  was 
the great-great-great grandfather of mine. He signed. T3e signed t h i ~  
what they called-a bunch of them mt dom there into Tennessee and 
dmwer went . . . 
Q: Oh, yes the Wautauga Compact, I believe it was here, yes. 

A: M y  uncle's nan~s on here s d r e .  

Q: Jesse m y ?  

A: That's ri&t. 

Q: Okay. That's interesting, k t ' s  see i f  I can find this. &, the 
(2lmberland canpact. 

A: Yes. 

Q: Let's see, l e t  me get the date on that here, May 1, 1870. 

A: Well, I want to t e l l  you. I wrote down there and I wanted a copy of 
the Ccmpact, Well she m t e d  it as it is ~KKI I think one or tcm of 
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&--that you could hardly read sane of it. And this is the best part of 
it . . . let me see . . . oh, that tells about that Ccnnpact, 

Q: Oh, I see. 

A: But there's another page in  here that tells quite a bit .  And l is ten,  
they settld a x d  Nashville, Iwt Nashville vas not there, the n a u ~  gf 
their town, village or &atever it ms. And they called it Nashboro. 
It's in there. Did you h o w  about that? 

Q: Yes, I knew it was Nashboro before it m s  Nashville. 

A: Y e s .  

Q: I think it may have had another rime before that, but I ' 11 read these 
after a b i t  so . . . This is interesting. 

A: Oh, puwnted to see smre of these pictures. 

Q: Oh, yes, let's look at the pictures and ta lk  about those. Those are 
always interesting, I like pictures. 

A: W e l l ,  you saw this? 

Q: Yes, I have a copy of that. 

A: Oh, you do. W e l l ,  do p u  have Grandpa's picture? 

Q: N3, I don't have a copy of his picture. I'll take a copy of that 
when I ' m  copying pictures here after a while. 

A: A d  now l is ten,  Grandpa Cook and his brother muld teach school. b e  
muld teach om w2ek and one m l d  *h the other d. 

Q: 'Ihe school? 

A: I suppose it was. I have that information. Ncrw same of those things 
didn't h e  Grandpa's picture in it. 

Q: No, the one I got didn't  have it, Now, if your great grandpa--if 
your grandpa was a teacher, ard yuur daddy a teacher d you're a 
teacher and Kenneth was a teacher . . . 
A: Kermeth and Uta, five generations, 

Q: . . . a d  your grandclaghter is a teacher, five generations of teachers, 

A: Eve generations. Now I don't hew whether there's anything here 
that you want to  see, I don't h o w .  

Q: Did your grandfather teach in Missouri, also? 

A: Yes. Now, Gradpa Cook's folks-the reason they got to Missouri-+ 
they'd heard about the fur trade. And that's how c- our folks c a u ~  ~ t a  
even be in Missouri. 
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A: And they c a  there due to the fur trade. m, I guess v h n  yau get 
to my age you can rffnemher a lot  of things. 

Q: A l o t  of things the west of us don't. 

A: k t ' s  see what this is--I don't hcw. 

Q: M s  your dad elected . . . 
A: Oh, now there's the school. 

A: The howe that my dad had built. I don' t how dm built it. 

Q: Here, let rre turn it around where you can see it better this way 
here. Now yrm can see. 

A: 'Ihere' s his dogs and there's chicken coops out there. And there's my 
dad's brother and his wife and their tm dau&ters, and these three are 
all dead and there's my mther and her father that vent to California 
during the Gold Rush. 

Q: Rw he's the one that wrote the diary? 

A: Oh, yes.  My aunt Ang, her nam was Aunt Angelhe-Grandpa lived w i t h  
her his last years. Let s see, how ms that? kw, what was I going to 
tell you? 

Q: k ' s  the one that  wrote the diary, right? 

A: W's the one that wrote the diary. 

Q: 'kat ' s incredible, absolutely incredible. 

A: And there's my mother and there I am ard there's my Grandpa Smith and 
Grandma Smith; there's my dad. 

Q: Y o u h  just got the whole tribe, ri&t there. 

A: And then there's Blanche,  my sister; and rrry brother, Ed; a d  my 
brother, Claude; and there's Uxle ked,  That's Poppa's youngest brother. 

Q: 'Shat's just a right nice Eram house w i t h  t m  stories and a nice 
porch and . . . a kitchen wing. 

A: kll, after dl, in that day it ws pretty good, 

Q: It wiw a nice house. 

A: h i  it was on this place that that man buried the peach seeds, 
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Q: (laughs) In o m  place. kt's see. Let me ask you sanething, C l i f f i e ,  
that school ws a log cabin, did you ever live in a log cabin? 

A: Iikwens, no! 

Q: Oh, not at all? I thought m a y b e  . . . 
A: Naw listen, I hew of people tha t  did. 

Q: I knew they had them way up into the 1900s and I just mndeued. 

A: Well, I think, mll, I how there was log cabins then, I hw that. 

Q: Oh, yes, I know that. 

A: But I never did. 

Q: My h t  Lillie--my aunt said that they did, just for a &ile m e ;  
and I just wrrdered. 

A: Oh, now Grandma Smith did have a log cabin. 

Q: In LaClde County? 

A: Yes. 

Q: Yes, 

A: She did. 

Q: So you got to see it anymy. 

A: k t  that WS . . . 
Q: Rut that m s  your house. 

A: That wis ours. 

Q: So you didn' t get that fun. Okay, now who are these people? 

A: Here's my mther d my dad. That's my mther's sister and her 
husband. And here's my mother's sister and her husband. 

Q: Tbm it this way you can see it better. 

A: And here's my dad d my nother, oh, that's the same picture. 

Q: Had your dad gone to college? Did I ask that? I can't remember, 

A: In those days you'd teach a a l e  d go to s c b l ;  you'd teach a 
while ard go to school. W e l l ,  my dad mt to &hlwd, Missouri, to a 
school. . . 
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Q: Richland, Missouri? 

A: And he m s  a real good friend of same doctor and that doctor had a 
gir l  namd Cliffie and that's where I got my name. (lau&hter) 

Q: %tts nice. 

A: 2here's that same school. Poppa and Marrma. Here's my dad and my 
nrother. Ard here's my Grandpa Smith and his wife. Aria they had ha or 
three sons that e r e  teachers. ?hey =re parents of my father. Oh, 
there's Margaret Mauser Cook. 

Q: Oh, then that' s an old picture. 

Q: She was my grandpa's gradrother. 

Q: Oh, my good=ss, 

A: Yes, And she's the one that came f rom Germany and she's the ane that 
she had a brogue. 

Q: So thick you couldn' t urderstad her. 

A: It was hard to understad than. And there's Grandpa. W e l l ,  I think 
same of those are later ones. 

Q: Did she ever--& Genrm grambrother--did she ever speak G e m  to 
you? 

A: Oh, I never saw her. 

Q: Oh, she vas dead. Okay, she ' s gone before you =re here. I 've pt 
sarne of these people mixed up. 

A: And there's Pbmm and Poppa a d  there's Grandpa. And here I am. And 
there's my mther and there I am dien I w a little girl. bob like I 
was dressed lik an old mnm. 

Q: Well, that's the my they dressed little girls to make thern lih 
little people. 

A : ell, everybady wre long dresses. 

Q: At least it kept you m. 

A: There's my Grwdma and Grandpa Smith. And there's Have's grandpa, 
and that's the only picture w could ever find. 

Q: Now Henre's folks, they lived in Dallas County, Missouri? 

A: Yes, it j ohed  LaClede. 

Q: Yes, i t ' s  adjacent. 
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A: And those people E r e  related to me m s  on m ' s  side and they 
lived, a lot  of them did, in not Dallas . . , oh, &at's the mm! of that 
ccrunty? 

Q: Back into LaClede? 

A: It joined LaClede. 

Q: But not Dallas? 

A: N o t  Dallas. 

Q: Well, a' 11 look in the p l a t  book here. Ut 's go on and look at 
these pictures here ard m'll see i f  w can £id what that county was 
here. I just happened to bring a plat book. Never haw dun you'll want 
to laww tJhere smplace  . . . l e t ' s  see, I 've got Dallas and LaClde and 
Wright and Webster . k t ' s  see, SJright 's south of LaClede. Texas is 
east, Pulaski is . . . 
A: That was it! 

Q: Okay. 

A: It was Pulaski County. 

Q: Just due east there? 

A: Isn't that a s h 1  then you w m t  to think of s ~ t h h g  you can't? 

Q: W e l l ,  it never fails if you mt something, that's exactly what 
doesn't come to mind, this is all . . . 
A: A l l  of these . . . oh, this is my Grandpa, my kandpa Cook's h, 

Q: It 'S pretty, i t ' s  as big as Doris' house, a big tm-story house. 

A: It reminds m of Doris' house. M, Grandpa bok, I think made mst 
of his mney whm he w n t  to  California durhg the Gold Rush. 

Q: He really struck gold? 

A: W e l l ,  I guess he did. And listen, he broq&t some gold back ard he 
gave tm of my cousins--m wasn't close to him--same pieces of gold that 
he had pt in California. 

Q: Oh, my goodness. 

A: Now wasn't that -thing? 

Q: Do they still have, the family s t  ill have i t  

A: Yes, they do. But so w e  kids didn't get none of it because . . . oh, 
I U mst of these are . . . 
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Q: Yes, these a l l  s e a  to  be . . . 
A: . . . oh, there m four kids are. 

Q: Ch, you girls -re dressed alike, pretty dresses with, tJhat is it, 
gold f l m s  on it or what color flmrs? 

Q: Were they white? 

A: b y  =re d t e ,  and the dresses E r e  navy blue. And Blanche and I . . . that ~s taken after  blame passed -y. Arrd there w s  s a  dresamker 
frm St. Ms, Missourimade our dresses. 

Q: All the way down there. And h m  far southwst of St. W s  are y m  
down there, about one Wred miles? 

Q: How far 8 0 u W s t  of St .  Zrruis =re you, about one hudred rrbles? 

A: Oh, I im3gim. 

Q: It's pretty close to  Springfield, Missouri. 

A: It isn't too far, it isn't tao fax. I believe these are all. 
(inaudible) Oh, here' s an old-timer. Now see Heme w s  the youngest of 
all  the family. That 's his mther , a d  his father a d  next to the oldest 
brother. 

Q: Oh, his father has a fine white beard there. 

A: Isn't that an old thing? And there's Blanche, my sister, 

Q: Now did she stay in Missouri or did she crme up here too? 

A: Oh, no, she lives in Kansas. Now my brother mrked in the office for 
the traction canpany in Springfield, Missouri. W e l l ,  I guess the 
superintendent, the wrkers all  mt on strike, and the superintendent 
left Springfield, Missouri a d  w n t  to Wichita, Kansas. And then he tent  
to  Wickita, Kansas, he had my brother come too. And my brother m s  in 
the office for the traction carpmy there in Wichita. 

Q: He just stayed in W h i t a ,  he liked it? 

A: k11, yes, after they had mxred out there, you know, and the ccmpany 
liked him so well. He says, "You just cone," he tas w1:kbg in the 
office there in Springfield, Missouri. 

Q: If they men't going t o  wrk ,  they'd go to  Wichita and mrk. 

A: kll, af-ter all, that superintendent I guess got wrk out there. 
told . . . 
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Q: He saw a good man to have w i t h  him. 

A: Yes. 

Q: Now those are . . . that's Cook, I can't read &at the first name i s  
on these tcmbestones here. 

A: I think . . . I believe that's Gradpa Cook. 

Q: Probably, let's turn this here and get the light . . . 
A: That's good of Doris and bnneth, isn't it? 

Q: Yes, that's a good one. 

A: Let's see, what does that say? 

Q: Let's see, can you read that? I usually carry a mapifyimg glass 
w i t h = .  . . 
A: bw h t  in the mrld does that say? 

Q: Let me turn it this way and see if I can . , . 
A: See if you can see it. 

Q: I've got bi-focals and I can't . . . oh, Margaret, this one says 
Margaret. 

A: Oh, that's that Margaret Mouser. 

Q: Y e s .  

A: Ard her husband. They =re the grandparents . . . I te l l  yau, you 
get mixed up in this deal. 

Q: Don't you? All families are confusing. k t ' s  see here, I think I've 
got that all on the chart: . . . yes, here she i s ,  she's , . . 
A: It ' s Margaret Mrruser . 
Q: Yes, she's your mthex's gramhuther? 

A: Yes, yes. Yes, that's the my . . . 
Q: Your mther m s  Lucy Elvira? 

A: Yes, that's my mther. 

Q: 'Ihey promumed it Elvira or Elvera? 

A: G L V - I - R - A .  
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Q: Yes, how did they pronounce that? 

A: Elvira. 

Q: Elvira, okay. So, she wuld have been her grandmother ; be youx 
great-gradmther , that ' s a long way back, 

A: Now, Margaret Pbuser, i s  her husband's name dawn there? 

Q: Yes, Joel Burton Cook. 

A: Joel, oh yes. Don't you get bound with all  this stuff s a a r e t h s ?  

Q: Yes, I have to look it up. I can't r d r  all the m m s .  

A: I do too, I do too. 

Q: There's too mmy n m ~ s .  I laughed, I said there's days I have to 
look at my driver's license to see k o  I am. 

A: I want to te l l  you sawthing. There's just so mch to think about, 
ard it's a job that you never get through. 

A: Yau're never done, 

Q: Now what, yau've got mre  pictures? 

A: O h . . .  

Q: &, this is beautikl. 

A: L%w here is the picture that: my school teacher took of Blanche and I. 
It's not in the very best of . . . that's . . . 
Q: Oh, out on those big rocks. U s  that sane they pulled out: of the 
fields? 

A: k11,  I don't laxrw what they =re there, h t  I think this is the 
lx i lding for the girls. And I had same copies d e  off of than l ike  
that. 

Q: Oh, the copies are better then the originals, yes. Did you girls 
always dress alike? 

Q: Did you d Blanche always dress alike? I see ym've got tihe same 
dresses here. Same dressmaker make these? 

A: Yes, I think it w s  that lady f i am S t .  Zxntis; but I don't know d u t  
happened here, but I had s a ~  mde off them, but that 's the picture tAmt 
that teachex of mine put on the Christmas tree, 
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Q: 'Ihat was a nice present, msn't it? 

A: W e l l ,  I wasn't errpecting it. 

Q: Back then, a picture was really sanething, 

A: T like that picture. 

Q: It's a pretty picture, it's w l l  set-up and everything. I'll copy 
that after while a d  keep that in the file. 

A: I think that's the negative of that. a, I get calls, I've gotten 
calls . . . now I have a cousin of my mther's, he's a doctor dom there 
in the state of Georgia. A d  he has called me twice relative t o  some of 
this stuff. 

Q: The pictures and the £amily wee? 

A: Well, you see, he m s  related to my mther and he's writing a book. 

A: Yes. And the s a ~  way that lady that ' s in Massacbetts , she's 
writing a book. I think . . . 
Q: You're going to have tm books on the same femily? 

A: Oh, 1 think these are all late. 

Q: Now that looks like those are all color pictures. 

A: Yes, I think they're all late. 

Q: I mnt to  back up a l i t t le  b i t  here now. bk Ere talking about ymr 
lady £ran St. lrruis that came down and did sewing for you; is she the one 
that Wt you to sew? Where did you leam to sew? 

A: grandnother on my father ' 8  side was a real g o d  seamstress d 
different ones, I rernEmber people that lived arourd her in the country 
wuld c m ~  and have Grandraa to cut the dresses out. She wuldn't make 
than.. . 
Q: She'd cut than out? 

A: They done m11 to even get them cut out. 

Q: h y  had to make their awn patterns then, didn't they? You didn't 
have nuch in  the way of patterns. 

A: But h y  just figured that Gradma wuld cut the pattern to suit 
them. 

Q: She rmst have then. 'Ihat nust not have been too easy, really. 
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Q: If you didn't have a pattern, what, did she m u r e  than,  how did she 
hcw. Or did she just have an eye for it. 

A: I think she just had an eye for it. And different ones wuld came 
there d have her to cut the material out. Isn't that s ~ t h i n g ?  

Q: That's incredible. 

A: b k l l ,  I guess they didn't have mney amq$ to hire it done. If 
she'd hired it done, I don't suppose she'd charged rmch for it. 

Q: Did you learn to  cut out from her or did yrxl prefer patterns? 

A: Oh, when I ww in the fourth grade there at  k h n ,  they had contests, 
or samething, sorne project that you'd make in sewing. I got high prize. 
one dollar. 

Q: 'Ihat was a l o t  of money then. 

A: And do you h o w ,  Blanche and I vent ham and w was telling my dad 
about it and Blanche cried, and Poppa gave her a dollar. 

Q: That wasn't hardly £air, w s  it? 

A: Now wasn't that s-thimg thou@? She cried. And listen, when my 
dad was in office there at Labanon, Missouri, maybe of a noon hour m ' d  
pass by the court house and maybe he'd give us a nickel a piece. A 
nickel. 

Q: That ms a lot of mmey then. You thought youwre rich. 

A: k t ' s  see, what else, if there's anything else. You saw that. 

Q: Yes, a saw that one. Did yau sew dmn you =re in  Missouri or did 
yau wa i t  till you got up t o  Illinois to do that very seriously? 

A: That's m. 

Q: (laughs) You're a l i t t l e  pixie there. k s  are you, about six months 
old or so? 

A: Looks kind of lik a baby about six mnths, don't it? 

Q: Yes, just barely s i t t ing up good. 

A: My d& a d  my mther . . . look a t  that dress she has on. 

Q: That's a l3.m dress. You see she's got a watch up here on it; isn't 
it? Is that a mtch or a brooch? 

A: It might be a brooch. But you how they're using them about that 
sac style here today. 
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Q: She's a pretty mman. 

A: The crazy sleeves . . . 
Q: Yes, leg-o-nutton slewes. 

A: I think they're terrible. 

Q: I'd hate to iron them. 

A: Now this i s  a bunch of stuff I 've collected. 

Q: Clh, you've got all U s  of scrap b k s .  It's a real good scrap book 
there. I ' l l  have to look at that in a little b i t ,  ard see what's in 
there. I see your father's J-s Harrison Smith. mere did the nams 
Harrison c- fian? 

A: Yes. 

Q: Was he named for a president Harrison? 

A: I imagine he was. In those days they naraed kids after sombody. N w  
like a, I was named dter  that docmr's . . . Oh, did yau want: to look 
at this? 

Q: Yes, I'd like to look at that in a minute. k t ' s  turn this off for a 
little b i t  here and . . . 

End of Side One, Tape One 

Q: Okay, Cliffie, let's start back here w i t h ,  wll, let's start w i t h  
yaur hame. kt ' s  go back ard let's be a little girl, k t ' s  talk about 
being a l i t t l e  girl this whole time ard  you^ family; werybody in Miesaur 

A: I mt to school to my father the last tern he taught, He taught for 
thirteen years. And he and I--my tw brothers viere older, they had 
walked to school--no, my dad rode a horse and I rode behind him to that 
school. h i  that was the *st school that I mnt to, and the last 
school that my father tauat.  

Q: How far m s  that fran your home? 

A: Oh, my, I imagine three miles, maybe. I don't h o w ,  I 'm just guessing. 
And do you know, that when Poppa and I mld--Poppa, you don't say that 
no mre--W E wuld ride to school , I 'd be scared, afraid a panther 
m l d  jump d m  on us. Nuv I w a  a l i t t l e  girl, 
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Q: Were you going through a timber? 

A: Oh, sure, w v m t :  through--oh, yes, w had timber too. And w e l l ,  
what a l l  do you want rae to tell you? 

Q: Well, what did you do in school? Tell rn about school, what did you 
study, what w s  it like? Name same of the people you e r e  in school 
with. 

A: k11, my tw brothers writ t o  the same school. I shawd you a picture 
of the school that my dad . . . 
Q: Yes, the log cabin. 

A: That was before Z was born. 

Q: D i d  you have a special friend, a W y ?  

A: W e l l ,  I did later because I had cuusins that mt to school at the 
same time and te mdd come around together. Now there's one of the 
cawins , 

Q: What's her name? 

A: Florence, 

A: ell, it used to be Jackson, but she married a Bernard. And there I 
am, and there's my sister. I'm the only one that's l e k  aut of w four 
kids. 

Q: My heavens, You were in school when your mtbr m s  still alive, 
wren ' t  you? 

A: kll, yes, I think I was about six years old or m t h i n g  like that. 

Q: You said s a ~ t h i n g  in an earlier tape about her drying pumpkins. 
Youx mther dried pumpkins? 

A: Oh, yes.  You h u w  dmt , I wll r d r  that. Upstairs, the floor 
was i n  but the walls weren't finished, but a r d  that chimzey b m a  
m l d  cut strips of pumpkin ard hang than wer a stick and hang around 
that chjrmey. 

Q: Did she make pie out of those? 

A: I don't h o w  what , . . (lau&ter) I just remdm w i t h  that. 

Q: After your fathex died, you mt to live with your-wll actually 
before he d i d - - p  w t  t o  live w i t h  . . . 
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Q: You ~ n t  to  his parents? 

A: Yes. 

Q: Okay. h twas  their natne? 

A: rvkrgaret Jane Wilson Smith. 

Q: 'Ihat was a lo t  of nares. 

A: W e l l ,  that was her maiden nzm too. 

Q: h t  was it like there? You and pxlr sister both ~ n t  , didn't you? 

A: bth done what? 

Q: Yau and your sister both wnt to l ive with your grandmother? 

A: Oh, yes, just VE tm. 

Q: I'm going to m e  aver here where you can hear me better,  I think 
that'll be a lot better. 

A: Grandma can't hear as good as she ome did. 

Q: I don't either, Did you have a separate roam upstairs, or dmt was 
their b e  like? 

A: Blanche and I slept  upstairs. But the thing of it was, before my 
father died, he m s  a kson. 

Q: Oh, ncrw w didn't know that. 

A: And he was an Wd Fellow. And he thought the best thing for B l a r c h e  
and I d d  be to go to  the &id Fellms Jbm a t  Liberty, Missouri or the 
Masonic JblE in St. Louis. 

Q: Oh, my. 

A: bt, no, the folks m l d n ' t  stand for it. And Blanche d I thought 
that was just like dying. 

Q: I think so too. Oh, that wuld have been a&l. 

A: W e l l ,  he just m t e d  t o  take care of us. 

Q: Yes, I laow, but still , . . 
A: But the folks w l d  not allow it at a l l  and E never did. 

Q: Did  yrxlr gr-ther teach you and Blanche t o  cook and sew? 

A: Sew. As I said, my graxhmther = a wnderful smtress  and the 
people w l d  cane up £ran--her neighbors-d bring ueterial and they'd 
want &andma to cut out: their g-t. They w l d  rnalce it. 
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Q: She muld desw the pattern in her head? 

A: I guess, dxitever they wanted. I imagine she even designed the 
pattern. But she never charged, she just had the good w i l l  05 them. 

Q: 1'11 declare. Your grandkther ws a hrrer? 

A: He'd been in the Civil War. 

Q: Okay. Union, I presurne. k s  that Union or Confederate down there? 

A: Oh, kim. Union. Although he ws born i n  Tennessee. 

Q: 'Ihat's what I thought, that they =re southerners. (lau&ter) 

A: kandpa was born i n  Termessee, but my other grandfather was born in 
Missouri. k t  his folks all lived in the east, in  New Jersey and New 
York, k t  s c m ~  of them--my grandfather's grandfather-came to Missouri 
during the . . . oh, what  n s  that . . . oh, the fur trade? 

Q: Were they £ux traders or were they merchants? 

A: That's all I how. That's all I lam. 

Q: Did your grandfather have any Civil FJar stories that he w l d  tell? 

A: Oh, I wish I h e w .  So m y  W n g s  now. I have a cousin that lives 
i n  Oklahaina, he's a minister of a First *istian m c h  cwer there. And 
he has gotten into this genealogy about our grandparents; it m s  his 
great-grandparents, it MS my grandparents. And he's really wring on 
it. He goes to OUaham City and there's a place down there b e  you 
can get information and he has recently sent me sarxle mterial .  

Q: But I just wndered if your grandfather had told stories to you girls 
when you e r e  

A: Had e lasowzl about all this, e ' d  have faurd out a lot  mre. 

Q: We never h o w  at the right t b ,  thou& do w? Haw big a farm was 
i t , w a s i t a .  . . 
A: What? 

Q: bw big a Earm did he have? 

A: I don't think but forty acres, 

Q: n-Lat uas a big farm, really, in that time. 

A: Well, I guess it as. And, another thing about it, they never bou&t 
anythmg in the line of groceries except coffee and sugar. 

Q: Haw did the sugar c m  in those days. It wisn't in sacks, was it? 
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A: 1 don't, that's d l  I huw. 

Q: And, otherwise, they m l d  raise everything that they ate. And as 
far as ma1 ard flour was concerned, they took theix flour to the mill 
and their corn to the mill to have ground into KIA--corn meal. 

Q: M s  there a river there that they had a water m i l l  or was it a horse 
mill? Do you remembp_r? 

A: Somebody muld own a mill and the people muld rush there and have 
their grain ground. 

Q: You don't ramher whether it was a water mill or a horse mill? 

A: I think the mill was on a creek or samething and I think that creek 
or that water PELS the v r  for the mill. Fbw I think that's the way it 
w s  . 
Q: Probably. Mst of it was water mills, I think, back then. 

A: I think that's the my it as. And then another thing about my 
grandrmther, she'd make her own soap. 

Q: How did she make soap? 

A: All right, they had an affair--boards cares together like that. 
(forms triangle w i t h  her hands) 

A: In a V. And they'd save all their mod ashes and plt in that, h t  
they called a lye hopper. 

Q: A lye hopper? 

A: They m s  go* to make lye. And they p t  water over those mod ashes 
and it m l d  drain dom to the bottm into a container ard she muld use 
that lye to make soap and it wuld be soft soap, 

Q: Now did she only pour the water cwer that dm she WAS going to mke 
soap? Just at the time? 

A: Ithinkitwaswt all  thethe. 

Q: Oh, I see. 

A: And yau hmw, the lye d d  gradually drain through and she m l d ,  I 
guess, save that lye and make soap. 

Q: Lhat else a t  into the soap? 
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Q: bhat else wuld into the soap, besides the lye wter?  Do you 
r& what else she plt in it? 

A: W e l l ,  old lard and stu£f like that. 

Q: Oh, rzc;rw see, I don't how haw to make soap. I don't h a w  what w in 
it. 

A: Well, you'd have to use lard or sorething you how. 

Q: Did they cook it or l e t  it set? 

A: &, I guess they cooked it. k w  I don't h a w  nhat else to tell you. 

Q: Well, =re you living at your gandmther's when you mt on to 
college? 

A: k t ' s  see, haw was that? No, Blanche and I wnt to  Springfield. 1 
wanted to  go to  college and Blanche wrkd for my step-mther who had a 
beauty shop, And after R l e f t  the school in the country, at  Grandma's, 
E mt up there t o  Springfield, Missouri. 

Q: Jhw old =re you then, about? 

A: Oh, I imagine I was about fifteen, sixteen, seventeen, somevhere lik 
that. 

Q: You Ere just a little girl then. 

A: Oh, I w a young . . . listen, I mt to tell you s-thing. A 
person migh t  think it' s funny h t  in school then ywu muld get subjects 
that you naw get in hi& school. Ard I never mt to  hi& school, h.t I 
had high school wrk. I had high school mrk in my grade school and in a 
college, but I never got a diplom kan hi& school. (lau&ter) 

A: And I'll tell you how my dad wuld do then. He tau@t thirteen 
Years* And he would teach a year ard then go to  schnol a while ard teach 
again. And that's theway. . . 
Q: Didn't you say his father w s  also a school teacher? 

A: No. M y  grandfather on my mther ' s side, my grandfather on my mother ' s 
side ww the teacher. He and his father m l d  tale turns about teachbg 
a t w k  at a th. 

Q: Oh, I see, I've got . . . 
A: A l l  right. And then my dad, and then Cliffie, then R i t a ,  and then , . . wait a m i m t e .  . . 
Q: I thiake red  Kenneth in there. 
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A: Oh, yes, Kenneth. Kenneth, then Rita. Yes. Five generations. 

Q: And i sn ' t  Natalie [Cliffie's great-granddaughter] going into ducation? 

A: wat? 

Q: I think Natalie's go* into education, isn't  she? Your great- 
grandd-ter up there, Rita's girl? 

A: She's go* to college. 

Q: Yes. 

A: Yes. 

Q: Wlt I thought maybe she vas going to be a teacher too. 

A: Well, you never know. 

Q: Wdn' t that be =thing, s ix  generations b the family. 

A: Six. I think i t 's  somthing that there is even five. 

Q: Oh, I think that's terrific, that's just unheard of. 

A: And at that tim, that school that te mt to  was named after our 
relative. 

Q: h t  was the name of the school? 

A: Nelson. But that w on my trother's side. My mther's gradmthek 
was a Nelson. 

Q: Ib you remember the street  you lived on the Lebanon durn yam father 
was still alive? 

A: Oh, I don't even ramher than streets. 

Q: Do you r d r  any of the nei&bors? Who lived beside you? 

A: Oh, I retllember sme of the girls that was in our roam at school. 
There w s  W e  Shields--that ws  a girl--that was one. Oh, I could 
finally think of them, maybe, I could probably think of them. 

Q: kll, let's go on , . . 
A: And a Busling girl .  A d  &en my dad was elected Recorder of aur 
county, this Burling girl's father was in the county office just lib 
Poppa m s .  Poppa, that sounds funny, I haw. 

Q: No, not really. Did you live in an apartmmt i n  Springfield or did 
you stay with relatives? 
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A: bk stayed with my stepmther. 

Q: A d  she had a beauty shop? 

A: Oh! I stayed at the g i r l  's dormitory I vent t o  college. 

Q: Yes, but first you stayed w i t h  . . . 
A: But Blanche stayed w i t h  my step-mther,  because . . . 
Q: Now, she left--& stepmthew l e f t  kbamn after yazs father died? 

A: Yes. 

Q: h c l  she had, what, tw youngsters? 

A: Yes, she did. Now her boy has passed away and she had a daughter 
that lives in St .  Louis. 

Q: In St. Louis. So B l a n c h e  lived w i t h  her in  Springfield, then later . . . 
A: Yes, because, see Blanche taught tcm years of school, 

Q: In Springfield? 

A: No. It was a r d  , close to Lebanon, not far fim Lebanon. And then 
after that . . . you know in those days, you h o w  yau go to college now 
and you go so long you earn your certificate. 

Q: Yes.  

A: Lk had to have a witten examination. If yw could pass yuur 
examination you was a l l  ri&t. 

Q: l h n  you got to  Sprmg£ield, you m t  straight to college ard lived 
in the girl ' s dormitory? 
A: I wmt to college, and that ' s . . . 
Q: Mat w s  the girl's dormitory like in that t h ?  T e l l  me about that. 

A: W e l l  every e ~ m i n g  before m muld have lunch, w muld  sing a song- 
"Day is Dying in the West." You've heard of that song. 

Q: I've heard that a long t i r ~  ago. 

A: All ri&t. That's what w m l d  sing before v,e ate. 

Q: Almst like a prayer? h t  was the building, what w s  the dormitory 
like? Can you describe it? 

A: S e w  like everything was kind of plain, as I r-er it. There was 
nothing elaborate about it. 
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Q: Fkzs it an old hause or =S it built as a dormitory? 

A: No, it was in conjunction w i t h  the college, 

Q: And this was what, South~stern Tachers--what's ham nrrw as 
SouthbE!stern. . . 
A: It's hown naw as the Southmstern State Teacher 's College. At that 
tine it wts called a No-1 School. 

Q: And this is in Springfield, Missouri? 

A: Yes. 

Q: Okay, Now what k i d  of classes did you take? 

Q: Do you remember your classes or any of your professors? What did 
they teach yau? 

A: Seems like £or one thing R took pedagogy. You how what t h i s  is, 
don ' t you? 
Q: Teaching? (laughter) Just p r m i n g  it muld be a job. 

A: Well, that was one thing. And I think rn took algebra, I think w 
did. And Eslglish, of course. 

Q: Haw long wre yms there? 

A: About five mnths . 
Q: About five mnths, just . . . h t  , one s e s t e r  , roughly. Term, 
whatever. 

A: Just about five mnths, hawwer it m s .  NDW that's all I h o w .  

Q: A d  yau had to take this final exam to get your teacher's certificate? 

A: I guess WE did, but , . . 
Q: lb re  did you teach? Where was your first school? Was it right 
about that? 

A: Oh, no, it wasn't here. And I got married a d  had t w  boys. 

Q: Well, where was your f i r s t  . . . tell me about this teaching - r ime.  
W t  ws that like? Were you scared? 

A: A l l  ri&t. bhen I m s  teaching, I lived at G r h ' s ;  that's before 
I started to college. I had taken a written examination, you h o w .  A l l  
ri&t. I had to board away £ram ham, across the river Erm my grandfather ' s 
to my cousin's and I boarded w i t h  my causb' s U l y  . And I would walk 
*ou& timba t o  that ccruntry school. 
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Q: h t  ww the nam of the school? 

A: It m s  called Monarch. 

Q: Monarch? 

A: Monarch. 

Q: How m y  plpils =re in it? 

A: Oh, my. I imagine there m s  thirty-five, 

Q: And you had all of those? And you =re what? Seventeen or e i g h t e e n ?  

A: I imgine somethbg like that. I imagine smething . . . 
Q: I'd have been scared to death. 

A: I -11 rememhp.~ one boy that I called him about mn~thing--I don't 
wemember what--and he got up and went hcrne and never cam back. (laughs) 

How old was he? 

He was a big boy. 

Can you remanber d m t  grades--was it all grades, or a lot of . . . 
I think it was all grades. 

Can you r d r  the m s  of any of the students this far away? 

One girl I ramher,  he^ nam w s  &tie Chambers. 

Axtie? 

Artie. A-R-T-I-E. 

Oh. %at ms she l ike? Was she a good student? 

She w.s a nice l i tt le  girl. 

Mas they mostly farm children? 

Oh, they all Earm children. 

Did school get out early so the boys could farm? 

h t ?  

Did school let out early in the spring so the boys could farm? 

I don't think so. 'Ihey probably did, h t  ynu didn't miss than, 
(lau&ter) 
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Q: With thirty-five, I guess not. 

A: Wzt: yau didn't miss than. 

Q: Did you teach just basic subjects, l ike  reading d writing and 
a r i t h t i c ?  

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: D i d  you do any sewing then? Md you teach the girls . . . 
A: Oh, no. No. Not till after I ms -ied did I start sewing. 

Q: There m s  no horn ec or anything . . . 
A: And it ms like this. bhen I got ~llarzied, my husbard was the youngest 
of six boys and they all c a u ~  out here on the farm. 

Q: To Illinois? 

A: Here in Illinois. And all  farmed a r d  M t .  Pulaski. kll, Herve 
nwer was satisfied until he got on the farm. J3e wed to be a streetcar 
conductor there in Springfield, Missouri. kt, anyvay, he dropped that, 
he dropped that, ard w m e d  out here anl w got a train for OUT huusehold 
g o d s  . . . 
Q: A train car? 

A: Yes. 

Q: Like a box-car? 

A: O f  the train, a car. And our horses and our cows, he c- through to 
Illinois on that car. Ard Kenneth and Doxis and I--Kenneth and Dale an3 
I--Jhnneth was just a baby when ie c- aut here and R came aut on the 
main. 

Q: Jk t~szsn't too big tben? 

A: No, he was a baby. 

Q: Dale's older than Kenneth? 

A: Oh, yes, Dale was older. Dale m s  t w  years older. 

Q: Did you have a place to cane to *en ycru came to Illinois? 

Q: h r e  was that? Was that where I raeiber you living? 

A: Axaund M t .  Pulaski. Oh, yes, had a place to cane to, That was 
all settled before v e  started out. 
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Q: bhat Ere the rimes of the brothers that =re already up here? 
A r d  Pulaski? 

A: &ll , it MBS David and Tam and Jim. Now that m s  the three brothers 
that was already out here. And did I say Steve? 

Q: Ha . . . don't have Steve. 

A: W e l l .  Steve is the one that rented the farm for us. 

Q: Okay. So that ' s four brothers that are already up here? 

A: Yes. And Herve msn ' t  satisfied unti l  he got up here. So that's how 
cane us to cane up here. 

Q: &'re still short armther brother. Did he cane or did he stay in 
Missouri? If there wiere six. 

A: Elv m s  the oldest one. Elv--what a ~ n e l  Elvige was his name, 

A: Elvige. bsn' t that a fumy rime? Well, anyway, he was the oldest. 
And he never came. 

Q: Oh, he slx~yed inMissouri. 

A: But there was six boys, see. And faur of them ws already out here 
and Herve vasn't satisfied until he got out here. 

Q: lhat w s  your first £arm l i k ?  What was the house like? Do p 
remember that? 

A: It had an outside toi le t .  

Q: Pbst of than did, didn't they, in  that day? 

A: The house wsn't too bad. But anyvay vie w e d  out there on that 
place. It - only eighty acres at that time. A d  years ago you could 
farm for less and still make mney. But d a y s  you have to have a l o t  
of acreage. 

Q: &11, eighty acres for a mn with horses was quite a bit. 

A: Yes, E had horses. Oh, I'll tell you son-~thing else. I brought my 
Ehde Island Red chickens out here. 

Q: I remember M e  Island Reds. 

A: W e l l ,  I brought them, and that year I raised a lo t  of young chickens. 
A d  they w ready to  sell, so w called a guy i n  Mt. Pulaski to cme out 
and get than. b11, tcio fellows came out: to get them and that Trick 
house, the fmnt of it wts hilt in and had a gate. And at the top of 
that: gate there w s  a board nailed across. A t  the top of that gate. 
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Q: Wat was the board far? 

A: Well, I imagine just support. I don't h o w .  A l l  right. They cane 
out a d  they got the chickens and w mt out there and there mre their 
scales they h8d left on that cross piece. 

Q: The old hanging scales? 

A: And they had the hand of it curved upward so they beat KE out of a 
few pounds of chickens. 

A: Now a t  do you how about that? 

Q: Made yau feel real good, didn't it? 

A: ell, when h e  mt into town then, he ~ n t  to them and he said 
something abut it. Well, this guy, it t ~ ~ z s  the other guy I think that 
done the wiglung, he said, "Well, he couldn't do anything about it, 
because it was  that Eellaw that done it." And I+E just couldn't do arry - 

m e .  

Q: I d d n ' t  do . . . did you do . . . 
A: Naw wasn't that sornethbg? 

Q: That ' s terrible. I ' 11 bet you didn' t do any more business w i t h  them, 

A: I should say not. A d  m haven't never forgotten--wer forgot it. 

Q: I wuldn't. 

A: Now to think, they had that hand tuned upwrd so it wuld have ta 
not wigh tOO m ~ h ,  see? 

Q: You d d n ' t  think people muld do samething like that. 

A: No. But listen, I haw of one person around Mt.  %laski--dead m- 
they m l d  even steal chickens. 

Q: Redly? 

A: Really. A d  he inherited his farm. But he had that name. That was 
bad. 

Q: 'Ihat ' s  terrible. 

A: Now, let me see. 

Q: After you got up here and got to  farming, the boys w n t  to school in 
Latham, I think you said, for a l i t t l e  h i l e .  
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Q: Did the boys go to school in Lathan or Rzlaski? 

A: The thing of it ms--w lived on around Route 121 beheen Mt. Pulaski 
and Lathan. bk =re closer t o  M t .  Pulaski. W e l l ,  a t  that t h e ,  you 
hm, those school d i s t r ic t s  =re so greedy to  get everybody in, they 
even had aur place in. And the kids, the kids finally had to  start to 
school at Latham. Because VE =re in that dis t r ic t .  

Q: Did they ride ponies? How did they get t o  school? Wouldn't have had 
a bus, muld you? 

A: Now, people frm a r d  us--there was a girl or ---they'd wen tale 
a train into M t .  F'ulaski. 

Q: Yes, there . . . 
A: They lived in our neighbor . . . you how, I really don't l aow  huw 
them kids got t o  school. (1augJter) I really don't h o w  how thein kids 
got to school, W e l l ,  anyvay, thmgh, a k e r  so long our kids m t e d  ta go 
to  school in M t  . Pulaski, to  graduate frm hi& school--which they did. 
Well, w mt to frfr, Ucenbill,  you remenber him, don't you? 

Q: Oh, yes. County Superintendent of Schools, [Logan County, Illimis] 

A: A l l  right. We wt to Mr. Mumbill and e m t e d  out of Latham t;o 
get into M t .  Pulaski because w ~s closer to  M t  . Pulaski. M l l  , he said 
this, "I 'm going to  grant you privilege to  come to M t  . Pulaski because 
you're interested in your kids." A l l  ri&t. Now, wlxm he said this--but 
he said, 'The las t  yeax of high school, dan't ask me because I ' m  going to  
run for re-election." 

Q: m t  did he mean? 

A: ik just had to pay one year of tuition. 

Q: What did he man by, "Don't ask DE . , . I I  

A: Nil, he didn't vant to  be obligated--he didn't want that to go 
against him on the election. 

Q: Oh, I see. J k  ms letting p u  go t o  school without pa- the tuition? 

A: W e l l ,  i f  w e  didn't  ask him, we'd have to  pay tuition. 

Q: I see. 

A: kt the thug of it, he didn't mt that against h i m  an his election 
deal. 

Q: So yau just paid tuition that  last year? 
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A: tkre year. 

Q: That's not too bad. 

A: And thennow, since then, our district is inMt. Pulaski. %t 
dist r ic t .  They've changd it. 

Q: bw, when you =re on the h - - d i d  you right away s t a r t  up being a 
seamstress--doing sewing or--how did you get into that? 

A: I alwys liked to sew. When I was in the fourth gade at Lebanon, 
they m t e d  any of us to make s- kind of project in the line of sewing. 
A d  I dressed a doll. And I got a dollar for a prize. 

Q: That was a l o t  of mmey for that day. 

A: kll, yes. All right. then my father cane hare £ran his office--& 
wis Recorder of Deeds at the time--& he c m  b and E kids =re 
home kan school wi! mld Poppa about it, he w e  me a dollar because I 
got a dollar. And Blanche cried and he gave her a dollar. 

Q: &11, YOU still came out ahead. (laughter) 

A: Nm, msn't that s m t h h g .  

Q: When your dad w s  Recorder of Deads, did you girls ever go down to 
the court house? 

A: &--and listen, h i m  m muld go to school at Lebanon, = 'd have t o  
walk to school. All ri&t, m'd go by the court house anl we'd see Poppa 
and he 'd give vm kids, maybe a nickel a piece. 

Q: (laughs) Candy m y ?  bhat ws the court hause like? Can you 
describe that to  e? 

A: b k l l ,  I thidc i t w s  -thing like--only I think i tws  red brick- 
but I think it m s  shaped $-thing l ike b o l n .  

Q: A big square with a dome on it? 

A: It m s  kind of large. And there w s  several offices in it, p u  h o w .  
All the offices that a county has. 

Q: Did ylrxrr dad have clerks in the office, or m s  he just the only one 
there at  that tinre? 

A: You man at the office? 

Q: Yes. 

A: Oh, there m s  a whole h h  of than, just lik there is over here in 
&oh. 
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Q: Okay. 

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: Can p u  r d r  any of them? 

A: The sheriff '  s hame ms Sharp. And there w s  a Dalmbsburg, I think he 
waa a lawyer, I think he m s ,  And my dad ms Recorder of M s .  I cant t 
think of any more. 

Q: That ' s pretty good, though--you have a good m r y  here. Okay, l e t '  s 
go back to M t .  Pulaski for a little b i t  now. And tell me about how you 
did get into--you wre telling IIE you got to sewing when you did the 
doll.  

A: Remaher, I started in the fourth grade, 

Q: Did p sew in Missouri while ycru =re down there? 

A: Did  I do kbat? 

Q: D i d  ymr do a l o t  of other sewing tJhile you -re in  Missouri? 

A: Yau see, after  o m  mther died, my father m i e d  again. After so 
long he married again. And how was it? Oh, I had got--this is terrible--1 
had got sorne material and I slipped atxi made that dress without my step-mther 
knowing it. b w  that's how t ~ e l l  I liked to  sew. 

Q: Now, didn't she want ywu to have your material? my did you s l i p  
a r d  to da this? 

A: I don't h a w  why I did, It w s  a project that I WIS wrking an that 
was  mine and nobody else's. And then when E got on the fanu--= - on 
that farm Eor thirty-tm years--= never had a contract, w didn't b e  
to  m e .  But the reason R COIE over here [to Wynesville] w s  that 
Kenneth m s  having trouble w i t h  his hired m. 

Q: Oh, the reason yau mnred to Wynesville--this house. 

A: That's how w come wer here, And now- didn't have to m e .  k 
could still been there today, but w didn't have to m e .  But Heme 
wuld say to  m, "I don't think yau want to go over there ." I wuld 
never mention it. I m d d n ' t  uention it to  my nei&bors or nobody. k t  
m ELnally  car^ and here I am here today, yet today. 

Q: C l e a r  up to Wynesville. 

A: fht anymy F ~ R  was on that place for thirty-- years. 

Q: I still want to lmow about you and ylr sewing. Now, you've got to  
have a lot of stories about that. 

A: W e l l ,  the thing of it ws, vie E d .  And Cliffie could sew. 
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Q: And beautifully. 

A: M I sewed for Tom, Dick and Harry. And in here I think I 've wi t t en  
(notes she made), says here, "bowing Illinois was a good farming country, 
that's one reason, that the reason the other boys came out too, you 

Q: The land's a lo t  better. Was it rocky &re you =we in Missouri? 
The land? 

A: b k l l  , there's rocks in Missouri. 

Q: Yes ,  I know there's a lot, k t  I just mndered i f  the land . . . 
A: Eberything's better there now, they say, because they use fertilizer. 

Q: But it wn't make rocks grow anything, 

A: No. 

Q: They still wn' t .  

A: W l l ,  really, now when I was real small-when I went to school riding 
on the horse behind my dad--you see, he had a mn hired to do the £am 
mrk . 
Q: Oh, I see, he taught and then had someme t o  do the wrk. 

A: He had. And one day he wmted that mn to plant som peach seeds. 
And that--he was a young man, I think, I think he was a young man--he 
m t  out d buried that whole-it w s  in a b k e t  or whatever it w s  
in--in one spot. 

Q: h t  did your dad say when he heard that? 

A: I don't h o w .  I don't huw. 

Q: Did you dad farmduring the sumner-ell, it m l d n ' t  be that rmch to  
do, wuld there, through the n r ?  

A: h t  vies that? 

Q: Did pur dad mrk on the farm after school ws out? 

A: I don't remember my dad ever wrking on the farm. 

Q: He just &--he ms the crwner and let this young mm do the work 
while he tau&& school? 

A: Oh, yes.  Axl at that tire &enmy father m l d  be may teaching 
school, my mther, I wll r e e r  she m l d  put on a coat of my dad's 
and go aut and milk the cows. 
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Q: Tell ~IE about your mther. What did she look lih? 

A: Oh, she ws the youngest of four girls and she was little like m. 
(4' 11") 

Q: W l l ,  you're not tall. 

A: If you'd see my gradfather on my mther's side, he ws a little 
short m, He's the one that mt t o  California during the Gold Rush. 
You rerraanber that? 

Q: Yes, I renmbr that story. 

A: And he never mawried till after he came back from the Gold Rush. And 
he vent out there overland, but he c m  hme by sea. 

Q: That diary ms r a l l y  interesting. [diary kept by Cliff ie 's  great- 
grarad£athE!x ] 

A: Isn ' t  that interesting. I 

Q: %ere aren't  many books l ike  that arourd. I'm going to include 
with this tape. t 
A: W e l l ,  anyway abut the sewing deal.  They found out I could sew I 
began to sew for a l l  the nei&bors, different ones of the nei&bors. P 
Q: Did you have any that e r e  special favorites? 

A: I just sewed for them all. In fact,  I don't think but twice did I 
ever get beat aut of any sewing mwy. 

Q: W e l l ,  that a s  better than the chickens. 

A: And one year when they =re pt t ing in Route 121 be-en M t .  Pu la~ki  
and Latham, there ms sanrz people i n  there wrking on that  woad and one 
of their wives came to  E for saw sewing d she l e f t  without paw. 

Q: Dod you suppose she forgot or she ws used to  not paying b i l l s?  

A: I don' t ?maw. That w s  one time. Tnen another time ms--I s d  for 
one of my nei.gtnbors and w e l l ,  she had a mm staying there w i t h  her--she 
was -rid--but anyway, this man wanted samething done in the l ine of 
sanng, I don't remember what it w now. I tell you, I've sewed so mch 
I don t know--1'11 meet people, I have met people--a l o t  of people are 
gone now. But I'd meet than atd they'd say, "You renmbex that dress you 
made for me?" I don't r d r  it. I don't r d e r  it. But anyway, I 
sewed soaaething for this mn a d  never got paid for that. Naw, in  a l l  
those yeaxs that I 've s e d ,  lxlt I think I told you in here different 
places where I had s e d  w s  L h o l n ,  Lake Fork, Latham, Decatur, 
Springfield . . . I 'd better look here to see h t  I said--it says here 
(her notes) my father lived across the river at  the time and he'd COKE on 
Friday evening--that's h t  I told yau about his clothes freezing on him, 
It was LIO wder he passed away at the age of forty-three. 
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Q: Fbw, he stayed across the river through the wek and boarded? 

A: He d d  swim his horse across the river and care h. 

Q: mery day or just . . . 
A: Friday evening. 

Q: He boardEd then. 

A: Oh, yes. You'd have to. 

Q: Y o u r  mther w s  hnrre w i t h  the children a l l  through the mek? 

A: With w children. Yes. Ard I well r d r  one tine I just h a l k y  
r h r  this. Qle day my mther m s  m h m g  kraut. 

Q: mt of cabbage? 

A: Yes. And my brother that was just older than m, he m t e d  to chop 
off the bad leaves off of a head of cabbage on a chair. Now, I don't 
knm what shape the chair m s  in or anything about it, But sanehow m 
another, Cliffie gut her haMd down there ard I msn ' t going to let him 
cut that cabbage up . . . and i f  he didn't w a c k y  hard. k11, I think 
it w s  this hand. You can probably see. 

Q: Yes, there's a scar across the ring finger and across. 

A: And do you how, h t  my nother--any other time you'd have gone to 
the doctor--no, she done her awn doctoring. And I wll ranember at that 
tim there would be tramps caning rhrou& the cauntry. And on our 
house--Poppa had had this W e  hi l t - -and  on that house the foundation 
m s  up kind of high and you could see d e r  it. And w kids saw tha t  
tramp caning and w ran a r d  the house and looked through underneath 
the house part arrl saw that man, I think he had one leg, hopping down the 
house. I guess he wanted s o r n e t h q  to eat, I guess he did. 

Q: bst of them did. 

A: But I don't remember every l i t t le detail ,  h t  I wll r d e r  that 
m, he had a d e n  leg. 

Q: Did  your mther feed him? 

A: I guess she did. bk kids ws on the other side of the house, scared 
to death. 

Q: a t  did you mther do about your fingew that got al l  cut there? Did 
she W a g e  it up? 

A: I guess she did, but that I don't remember. But I sure reanember 
gutting my had  down there so Claude could not have cut that cabbage. 
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Q: He -8 going to cut it anpmy. 

A: And he just whacked my hard. 

Q: That was a scary thing to do. 

A: Nm I don't kmw . , , ell, I told you about that s e a .  

Q: Yes. Tell E, did ywx mther use any hane remedies? You said she 
did saw doctoring. 

A: Oh, I guess she did. 

Q: b you how any of them? What =re the old country remedies? We 
don't talk mch about those anymre. Do yrxl how any fran your grandmther? 

A: That I don't haw. I don't know hther they even had any or not. I 
guess they did. 

Q: I suppose, You h o w ,  they used to use plants and things. 

A: But I sure don't . . . kt talking about sewing. I s e d  for a 
doctor in S p r w i e l d .  I knew his niece real ell in M t .  Pulaski and I 
still know her. She's been wer  here. 

Q: W d n '  t be Dr. Zelle, d d  it? 

A: Yes, DK, Zelle. How did you how him? 

Q: I 'm related to the Zelles . 
A: Oh, yes, this =S Dr. Zelle. Yes, 

Q: bbw tell me about Dr.  Zelle and the sewing. Did you go to his house? 

A: The thing of it as--let's see, how m s  that now--Mildred and I, his 
gr-ter , no, his niece; E vent to, oh, Dr. Zelle wanted me to do 
sarne sewing for him. Dr. Zelle's wife had passed away. Ard he wanted IE 
to do sane sewhq~ Eor him. And Mildred a d  I, Mildred Hahn, and I mnt 
d m  there then, Ad I upholstered sorre chairs for him. ard listen, 
talking about sewing, I've done everything in the l h e  of sewing. 

Q: It sounds like i t ,  if you've done upholstering. 

A: I upholstered Eurniture, I made an airplane sock. You k m w  what that 
is? 

Q: Oh, wind smk, a wind sock. 

A: Yes. 
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A: W e l l ,  fbr a guy aver here beneen aesixut and L a k .  

Q: h of the Stahls? 

A: Wm't Stahls. 'Ihe fellaw lived araurrd there. J3Ls name was LRUiS 
samebody. They're both dead now. 

Q: Volle? Oh, w z l l  . W t  did you sew for Dr , Zelle? 

Q: If his wife was dead, what did you sew for Dr, Zelle? 

A: I upholstered those chain. R-r, when I first hew Dr. Zelle,  
Mildred and I mnt to his h that w s  on Lake Springfield and after  his 
wife died, he m e d  into tom. And I upholstered those . . . oh, I 
upholstered furniture, a lot of it. 

Q: bbat kind of upholstery did you put an chairs for Dr. Zelle? What 
kind of chairs -re they? 

A: Wl, like a living room, and stuff l ike that. And then b Dr. 
Zelle, I believe mt t o  Africa--didn't he go out there for, mll, fox 
samething. And he wrote E a letter, 

Q: That m s  nice. 

A: Msn't that nice of him? And out in my hmt room in there, in that 
front bedroam, when Mildred and I m s  dom there at his Lake Springfield 
h c e ,  I saw he had tw comer cupboards and he msn't going to take thetn 
to t om and I said, "I'd like to  b e  them." Mildred says, "I m l d n ' t  
mind it myself ," But she says, 'Zf you want them, then you can have 
them." And I have got than Way.  

Q: From Dr .  Zelle ' s house? 

A: Yes, ma'am. 

Q: Are they antique, or %re they hilt into the M e ?  

A: You mt to see them? 

Q: s k t ' s  take a look at those. (tape stopped) 

A: . . . a new living zoom outfit and nobody said a mrd about that. 
Etut Judy m t s  this 

Q: Judy m t s  the oak table. Now, haw did you get Dr. Zelle's cupboards 
out to your--those beaut ih l  corner cupboards--out to your h e ?  Ih you 
r d r  that? 

A: I have no idea. We had a truck. flbybe w mt and got them. I 
don't . . , 
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Q: They sure look like mlnut. Thnse are beautiful. 

A: Aren't they lwely?  

Q: Psld you say Rita wants those? 

A: Rita wnts them. 

Q: And there's that gorgeous cedar chest that Dale made. 

A: Dale made that. And Judy wnts that. And Judy wants that rug &re. 
And do you how, at t ha t  time when I got that rug, I got it a t  Wards in  
Decatu--$84. 

Q: %t' s been a long th .  Tnat ' s a beautiful oriental carpet. 

A: $84. And my sewing m c h h  is out there on the porch. I've been 
trying to m e  downstairs. 

Yes. You used to have it in an upstairs bedroom. 

Ihad  a sewing roanup there. 

Yes, I remember that. 

Nuw Clif fie don't sew no mre, 

You don't have time? 

b? I'd have time, but I don't see quite as g o d  as I once did. 

Oh, you had cataract surgery, didn't you? 

Q1 both eyes. 

On both eyes? 

A: Both eyes-at different t h s .  

Q: Yes. Tell rce about this schoolrraster 's desk in here that belonged to  
your great-grandfather, or yau: grandfather? 

A: Kenneth's grandfather. 

Q: Youx dad? 

A: Wait a minute. No, his father's father. 

Q: You grandfather, then? 

A: Kenneth's grandfather, not mine. 

Q: But yarr dad? Give E a nam of who the desk belong4 to? 
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A: It's Kenneth's father's Eather. 

Q: Oh, okay. I see. &I that line. 

A: And he got it when he =S a young m. And I don't think there's a 
mil in it, I man there's not m y ,  i f  there's any. I think mybe there 
might  be very few. But they used wden pegs. 

Q: This belonged to the Patterson line, then? Okay. &re they school 
teachers, or d ~ t  did the Pattersons . . . 
A: Oh, they m s  farmers. But they ws pretty well-to-do people, I man, 
at that time. 

Q: Comfortable, a n m y .  

A: 'Ihey *re comfortable. 

Q: That's a beautiful walnut desk. 

A: Oh, yes, Kenneth wants that. And he m n t s  those figurines on each 
side of it. 

Q: #at are they? Is there a story b h i d  k? 

A: You r d r  a long t h  ago where different people-different v m m - -  
d d  have a party in their hare for a certain brand of rrrat ler ial?  

Q: Oh, yes. 

A: And when you had it, ym'd get scraaething, and I was given that. 

Q: It's a . . , what, a colonial lady and colonial man. They're--what, 
about ten inches tall? 

A: k e  w s  a paint shop in Decatur, and I remanher seeing that paint 
shop and I think it was . . . 

Esld of Side One, Tape k 

Q: . . . oh, betwen the figurines? 

A: Yes. Kenneth m t s  that too. 

Q: bhat kind of clock is that, do you how? 

A: I don't b. 

Q: Just a minute here, I'll go look. 

A: You may have to get up in that chair. (tape stopped) 
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A: k w  to tell you the truth, I don't h o w  the name of the clock. But 
he mts  that desk, that clock atxi those figurines. 

Q: ?hat's a beautiful clock. 

A: A d  that old chair. 

Q: The one in front of the television, the ladder back? 

A: Yes. Yes. 

Q: I can't tell &t kind of a clock it is, it's too high. (on top of a 
s c h o o l ~ t e r  's desk) kt it's got a perxidun, and it's got a finial on 
the top. It  looks like i t ' s  walnut, too. It's beautiful. 

A: Oh, it is. AMS it runs all the t h .  

Q: Wo did that belong to? D i d  you buy that? 

A: Jhmth's  aunt. 

Q: Your sister? Or Heme's sister? 

A: Itewe's sister. k t  they was quite a bit older than wa =re. m e  
was the youngest one of the fdly. 

Q: Did all the Pattersons, =re they all in Missouri, other than . . . 
The girls, I guess . . . 

All of Henre's family wxs born there in Missouri. 

And the boys catre up here, Did the girls corn up? 

h e  girl came. 

D i d  she carae to Pulaski? 

tik was all around M t  . Pulaski. 
Wat was her name? I don't think. I have her m. 

Her naw m s  Caroline, but the called her Callie. 

Callie. That's pretty. Mm did she marry? 

She married Walter Cowan. 

cobmn? 

GO-W-A-N . 
Q: Okay. Anyway, wid yrm k y  and talk about your sewing? We got as 
fm as Dr. Zelle. Who else did you sew for that had a good story with 
them? 
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A :  k11, I j u t  s a d  fm so many I just can't designate &h ones to  
talk about. I just s e d  for than all.  

Q: Was anybody pawticularly cantankerous? 

A: No. They hew if C l i f f i e  m 1 d  fix it, it mld be fixed. I'll 
nwer forget, you how buise Irvin, married &old T d i c k ?  

Q: Yes, I 've heard the name. 

A: &ll , they're your neighbors wer here. Her daughter e n t  to  college 
ard while she was in college she wanted to  get somthing for one of her 
classmates. But whatever it WS, it had to be fixed. And here come 
Louise and her girl out w i t h  &atever it ws w i t h  her. Usten, I 've 
s e d  so mch I don't even r d r  a lo t  of that map. (laughter) So, 
anyway, U s e  and her dau&ter b r a @  it out, whatever it was, I dan't 
know hther  it was a pillow top, I don't h o w  a t  it ws. I'mnot 
s a y i q  &at it ws. ht, when W s e  started lmte she says, 'Tkll , my 
worries are wer ." She knew I'd fix it. 

Q: kew it w all taken care of when you pt it? 

A: Now that's just the way they hew I could do it. 

Q: There wasn't anything yuu couldn't do w i t h  a sewing mchine, 

A: I would &--I 'd t r y  anything, 

Q: Tell me about it, did you start out w i t h  hand sewing or did you 
always have a sewing machine? 

A: C&, I s t a r t d  out w i t h  hand sewing, you how. Inmy lifetime I've 
had three sewing machines. 

Q: Tell me about them. W t  Rre they? 

A: W l l  , the thing of ms, when w started out i n  Springfield, Missouri, 
and &me T J ~ S  an the streetcar then, I bou&t a Singer sewing machine, 
but it ws used. 

Q: A used Singer. 

A: A used Simger . W e l l ,  it s t o d  up a l l  xi@, but I msn' t  satisfied 
because it wasn't new. W e l l ,  anyway, then, ' k ~  cam out here and I mt 
to Decatur and you know where Linn & Scruggs used to be? Ml l ,  all  
ri&t, I mt in there and I lookd at their sewing mchines and they had 
a brad they called a Standard. 

A: ST-A-N-D-A-R-D. kll , it was a god brand. k11, I bought me a 
brand new Standard. W e l l ,  after so long then, I decided that a Singer 
was number one &en it ccm? to  sewing machines. I wasn't satisfied until 
I mt to the Simger shop there in Decatur and got rre a brand new Singer 
sewing machine. 
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Q: I)id you eade  in the S t a d d ?  

A: I guess I did. 7 h t  I don't--but the sewing mchim is out here on 
the porch and i t ' s  a good looking sewing machine. 

Q: How long have you had it? 

A: Well, you know, w 've been over here better then m t y - f i v e  years. 

Q: And you had it before yw cam here? 

A: I had it before I cane over here. I'll show it to you in a minute. 
So I got me a brand new Singer. I wsn ' t  satisfied w i t h  that Standard, 
although it m s  a god one, and it's a good brand. 

Q: Did it have a lot  of a t t achmts  on it, a lot  of fancy stitches? 

A: ah, in my sewing mhine  aut here, I 've got every kind of attachnent 
you want, even to the pMdng s k s .  

Q: Q2 the s e w  machine? h t ' s  go look. (tape stopped) 

A: If I ' m  waiting for the mail carrier to  CODE or somathing, and have 
just a l i t t l e  time on my hands, I'll sit down and play a game of solitaire. 

Q: I l i k e  to  play solitxire, Now, t e l l  rre why you bought a treadle 
machine instead of an electric. 

A: Listen, I don't knuw how m y  times, b m a n y  different times, I 
foud out that people are having trouble w i t h  their electric sewing 
machines. You haw anything about that? 

Q: Yes, I certainly do. 

A: All right. I wanted that other sewing machine. I m t e d  one that I 
h e w  was a l l  rwt, A d  as I say, I could have bought an electric. No, 
but Cliffie didn't. I didn't mt no electric. 

Q: (lws) Do you feel you have better control over the treadle machine 
than you do the electric? Ih you feel it sews better? 

A: I like it, 

Q: You just like it. 

A: A d  I ' m  used tro it. 

Q: That has a lo t  to do . . . I learned to  sew on a tradle tllachine and 
M ' s  old rmchine is still over in the house, but . . . 
A: W t  kind was it? 

Q: It was an old Singer--belonged to my great-grandm&r. Nil, Doris's 
grandmther, 
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A: And it st i l l  viowks? 

Q: S t i l l  wrks fine. Man used it ri&t up to the, almst the day she 
d i d .  

A: I'll bet that girl of yours muld l ike  to  have it. 

Q: Well, k o ' s  girl gets it. bk had to share. 

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: %at U s  of materials , . . do you find a big change wer the years 
in the quality of materials? The types? 

A: kll , it was samething--oh, what: ' s the name of this new material-so 
mch of i t ?  

Q: The double knits or hits, polyester? 

A: The hit, I think, so a h  of the knit has come. But you remaher 
when I first s t a r t e d  out m had calico. 

Q: Calico's pretty. It's making a came back, you know. Was it easy to 
wrk w i t h ,  when you s-d? 

A: Well, mt the b t .  

Q: No, the calico, 

A: Calico w good. 

Q: k s  thread d a y s  on a moden spool? How did it care dm you started? 

A: Al~nays on a moden spool. And, ypstairs--I was in Chestnut one day, 
i n  Williams's store and they was beg* to  sell out. W e l l ,  you r-er 
in those stores in those days they had a thread-a cabinet for thread, 
just for thread, and they pulled out the drawrs. 

Q: Yes, I r d x  those. 

A: I wanted to buy it, and I think I gave five dollars for it. 

Q: The last one I saw wis priced three humired dollars. 

A: I think I gave five dollars fbr that. kll, I had to  have it fixed 
up a little bit, a large drawer at the top, under those doors, you h o w ,  
a d  then the smaller drawxs at the bottom a d  they have white knobs. 

Q: Yes, I ramrkr those, 

A: kll, they mnt that to go with that sewing machbe. (laughter) 

Q: Did you keep thread in it then, after you got it hare? 
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A: m, i t 's  £1~11 of thread m. 

Q: Oh, still is? 

A: And you h o w ,  I have so many of them little spools. You ranenher 
them? 

Q: Oh, yes. 

A: And you how how expensive thread is naw. 

Q: Oh, it's terrible. 

A: It's terrible. kll, I don't how a t  I haven't done. 

Q: Did you have th t o  keep a garden in m n g s t  all  your sewimg? Did 
you really like gardening or was it just sanething you did? 

A: Oh, I liked it, 

Q: Wat did you plant? mat kinds of things? 

A: Oh, in the garden? 

Q: Yes .  

A: Oh, let tuce and radishes and onions and peas and beets and potatoes. 

Q: Then haw did yau keep than over the winter? l&at did you do--did you 
d r y . .  . 
A: We m l d  have a cellar. 

Q: But I don't bcw how you gut things in the cellar. I don't ranather 
that. How did you do that? 

A: You mean p t  it in the cellar? 

Q: Y e s ,  what did you do? You didn't just put it loose in the cellar, 
did you? 

A: Well, =had abin.  bk had abinmade i n t h e c e l l a x u p  onlegs and 
that's where the potatoes mt, 

Q: They men't covered or anything? You just pzt than i n  this bin, off 
& floor? 

A: M y  wuld w cover than? 

Q: I don't how--that's what--I don't h a w  d m t  you did w i t h  them. 

A: No. 
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Q: You just plt than in the bin d m  there? Okay. h t  did you do w i t h  
the beans? Did you can or dry them? %at did you do? 

A : Oh yes, I have canned beans, and tamtoes and cherries. k had all 
kinds of cherries there. 

Q: I lme cherries. 

A: k had al l  kinds. And people muld cate there and pick cherries. 

Q: So you had mre than you really needed £ran your cherry trees. Did 
you sell than or just let them come and pick? 

A: I think I sold them. 

A: If they picked them, you see, they was cheaper. 

Q: Yes. 

A: kll, if theymted than, t h e y m s  indarrand, a d m a d  for than. 

Q: There certainly ws. (laughter) How big w that farm there at 
Pulaski? 

A: I believe it wis 166 acres. 

Q: 166 acres? That m s  a big fawm then to . . . 
A: And listen, PE fan& right up next to  the railroad, and that railroad, 
that Raute 121 ran ri&t beside the railroad. 

Q: Yes, that's just right parallel there. Wkat was your best crop? 
khat mre ymr main crops? 

A: Oh, corn and soybeans. 

Q: Did you do oats a lo t  to begin wi th ,  when pu first came up here, for 
horses? 

A: bk E a d  with horses to start w i t h .  

Q: Yes, lxlt I'm saying, did you grow oats for the horses? 

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: And k p t  a pasture? Did yau have dairy cows--milk cows? 

A: Yes, ard w 'd sell cream. We had a cream separator. 

Q: How did you get it to town? Did you take it down to the railroad? 
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A: I think w had a Ford touring car. 

Q: A Ford? 

A: A Ford tatring car with curtains on the side, you how, and everything. 
I'll never forget one time w mt over to b e ' s  brother, and our car 
was new then. And Stwe said to my trusbard, 'That car is good enough for 
anybody." And do you haw there w s  no heat in  there. 

Q: Didn't have a heater? 

A: No heat, there w s  no heaters then. 

Q: Wat year was this? 

A: Maybe it was 1921, or 1922 or 1923, somewhere along in there, And 
then after that, see w had those side curtains on it and Kenneth and 
Dale muld have to ride in the back, and w ' d  have to put a quilt wer 
than* (laughter) 

Q: I think you muld have needed tm quilts in sme of t h i s  mather. 

A: Atxi then after that m got a--what W of a car was it, Ford made 
better than the regular tauring car? 

Q: Sedan? Oh, the Wrcury? You rmn the Mercury? 

Q: Yes, okay, 

A: Yes ,  e finally got a Mmxry. And then c l l ~  had a Chevrolet . . . 
Q: Wbs there a dealership in M t ,  Pulaski or did you buy these cars in 
Iincoln? 

A : I believe e bought them in Mt . &laski--the cars. Is that what you 
asked me? 

Q: Yes, that's what I asked. You don't ranember who the dealer was at 
that time, & you? 

A: k11, I don't h. I don't h o w .  And there m s  one car FR bought-- 
it almst makes me v d t  when I think about it. 

Q: What was the matter w i t h  it? 

A: bhat was the of one of those cars about that time? 

Q: b11, there =re Packards , . . 
A: No. It wasn't no Packaxdl 
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Q: bk11, there =re Fords and Qlevrolets and Dodges . . . 
A: Plymxlthl 

Q: Plymuth. Okay. 

A: &ery time M? mtd to go sanewhere = had to take the tractor t~ 
s t a r t  it. 

Q: Ibuldn't s t a r t  by i tself  a t  all? You might as m l l  had a horse. 

A: k s n ' t  that d l ?  

Q: That muld be terrible. 'Ihe dealer d d n '  t fix it? 

A: I say every time, maybe not every time, k t  so mny t b s .  Many 
t h s  rn had to  s t a r t  it--d that's h t  makes me vomit a11mst vhm I 
t h i r l k .  0 .  

Q: I d d  be cross, 

A: . . . when I think of a Plymruth. 

Q: Any car that you'd have to plll w i t h  a -actor to  s ta r t  . . . 
A: Atxi you know, anybody that you talk to about a Plymuth, el1 they 
liked their Plynrmth that they had. Oh, - got a pill. 

Q: I got a bdge I'd like to  give back. k did you get your first 
tzactor, did you buy it new or used? Do you r d r ?  

A: Oh, h e n s  yes. Anything w- h & t ,  w h & t  new. And at that 
time every t h  t ~ e  bou&t anything, w had the m y  to pay for it. We 
didn't do like a lo t  of than did, but it on time--no, sir. We mited 
till ve could pay for it. 

Q: Wt do ywu remember about that first tractor? 

A: I believe it---11, what w s  the nace of them Erst tractors? 

Q: Well, there =re Ford tractors carne out, John Deere; I don't reznember 
when the Internationals came out. %ere Ere big old Cases . . . 
A: I don't think--it wasn't a John Deere. 

Q: They had Case tractors. Reaurmber , they =re great big old steel-wheeled 
outfits. 

A: I think our f i r s t  tractor m s  a steel-wheeled--I think so. 

Q: h t  -8 International--I can't rarmbr what International Harvester 
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Q: Farmalls--those red outfits. D i d  you have one of the first tractors 
in the nei&borhoods. Seemu to me like . . . 
A: b, ME was a little slow abuut it, just l ike  w ws w i t h  the television. 

Q: (lau&s) You wit to see if they =re going to wrk? 

A: kll, e just didn't hurry about it. I& waited till w had the mney 
to pay for it, Naw, that's just the way vie always =re. Nowadays, 
though, they go and buy, buy it on time. 

Q: Can't pay for it anyrrpre, either. 

A: Aml pay extra. 

Q: Pay dearly for it. Same of them . . . 
A: Now that's just the way w viere. 

Q: brked a lot better too, didn't it? 

A: It was bad emu& then. (lau&tr) 

Q: But at  least you got it and you still could retire. 

A: And I r d r  our combine, and I remember the disc that w? had in 
the field and I wuld wen ride on the disc, I could disc ,  

Q: h a t  did you do on the d i a c ?  

A: Disc t h e g o d .  

Q: I man, you rode on the disc? 

A: Rode--well, yes. 

Q: Was this a horse-pulled disc? Or m s  it behind a tractor? 

A: I believe it w s  horse-dram. 

Q: &, okay. Probably w s  . 

Q: Ibw many horses muld you have on a disc? 

A: I think four. 

Q: Four. 
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Q: And you handled four big horses? 

A: And do you ~ C I W  that reminds me, the other day I saw Linda Wmel and 
her children, and her lit t le boy says--he's in the sword grade--he says, 
'%u h o w  I've been riding on"--what did he say it was, sane kird of farm 
~ ~ h i n e r y ,  Wlt I'd be afraid t~ let him ride on farm ~11~1~:hinery. You 
know he's not wer eight anymy. kt he did say--''Oh," I said,  "I don't 
how &ether I'd m t  you riding on my farm mchinery ow not." He says, 
'Well, my dad dmys rides right behind me." 

Q: Oh, tlaat's not so bad. You man he's like he's driving a tractor-this 
l i t t le boy? 

A: Yes. I thought that was dangerous. 

Q: That's scary. That's scary. 

A: And I think it 's against the law. 

Q: You have to  be, I believe, i t 's  fourteen. 

A: Yes. 

Q: Because = had trouble with the boys, they couldn't farm for Dad 
unt i l  they =re fourteen or sixken. 

A: But &en he told me that and he m s  in the second grade in school. 
And he says, 'You how, Dad just rides ri&t behird me." 

Q: Yozl could be ntn mer by the time Dad gets to  you. 

A: I should say so. I don't how whether you rerrranber or not, but: there 
was a couple that lived on Route 121 north of M t ,  Pulaski and they E a d  
out there on Salt Creek. You Isnow where Sal t  Creek is? 

Q: Yes, I h o w  where Salt  Creek is north. 

A: A l l  ri&t. They farmed this side . . . 

A: Sauth of Salt Creek there a l i t t l e  mys. And they had t w  boys. A d  
one boy went out to get the mail one day and he got hit w i t h  a car and 
killed him. A d  the other boy was out in the field on the tractor and 
lightning struck ard kil led him. 

Q: my, he rmst have had a plow in the ground or samthing then. If he 
w.s on the tractor because the tractor itself wuldn't . . . 
A: I guess he ms. I guess he was. 

Q: W d n ' t  that be terrible to lose boys? 
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A: They just had those tm boys and they m s  wiped out, just like that. 
And then they separated. 

Q: &t's terrible. 

A: And she has never remarried or anything. I think she does hospital 
wxk aver there at the Christian Nursing Horn [in Lincoln, Illinois] and 
at the regular hosyital [Abraham Lincoln Memorial Hospital] over there at 
Zincoln, too. She s a lovely, she's a good girl. 

Q: I don't how the family, but I--that's just terrible, samething like 
that to happen* 

A: A d  thm, wll , this is his third marriage, he rnarried again. Zhat 
was his third marriage. 

Q: Takes a l l  W s ,  I guess. 

A: I guess it does. And they don't thbk anything about divorcing 
a n p r e  than nothing, do they? 

Q: Ibesn't seem to matter. 

A : lhey don' t seem to think an- abaut it. It ' s like-I 've heard 
Kenneth say one day, he says, "I thou& when you got mcried you had to 
stay marid," 

Q: I didn't h o w  any different, did you? 

A: No. 

Q: Haw long e r e  you married? 

A: SWy-four years when he passed away. 

Q: How old w s  Mr. Patterson *en he dided? 

A: A d  he's been gone five years. 

Q: Ibesn't sean l ike any t h  . . . 
A: Yau - there, wasn't p? 
Q: Yes, I came. 

A: You wsn't at the fimeral, was you? 

Q: No, I had to wrk that day. 

A: b11, myway, the minister d e  m t i o n  of the fact that m had been 
m i e d  sixty-fbur years when he passed away. Naw isn't that satething? 

Q: 'Ihat's a long th. 
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A: And & you h o w ,  believe it or not, I am going on my ninetieth bixmay 
nuw, 

Q: You just had a birthday Wdneday . 
A: Ei&ty-nine. October the 29th. kt after all those, I 'rn still going 
on. 

Q: You going on to that nwt one in no matab terms. I think that's 
terrific. 

A: I guess it is--& to think that I can do everything that I ' m  supposed 
to do in my how. Now, i t 's l ike  Kenneth says, 'h, don't make no 
garden, e ' 11 have enough garden for you anymy. " 

A: Always had a garden. 

Q: Are you going to put one out anyway? 

A: And I canned--&, I've always c d .  Axad here, not very long ago, 
Marge Rich was down-yau haw Marge Rich and Kenneth . . . 

A: Ull, I said, ' k g e ,  I've got a lot  of canned tamatoes there h the 
baserrent, a l o t  ." I don't knuw how many there viere. I says, "If you 
want than, you can have than. I don't have no use for all that stuff 
anpre." But I just kept carming and kept canning and kept canning. 
And there m s  that wer supply of canned t m a t o e s .  And she and her 
daug;hter came out here and they brou&t a huge big box to put them in and 
that didn't hold them. And I wnt  and found another box and they filled 
that. 

Q: What do you do now w i t h  yow time that you don't--you can't see to  
sew too good? 

A: b n ' t  think for one rrdrmte that my time is not occupied. 

Q: my, I haw it is. That's what I want t o  know here, what all you do. 
That is whar's fun. 

A: bll, youwant to l P n a w h t  I do? It takes t h  to take care of your 
houselikeyououghtto. 1manit takesso11let i .m.  

Q: Oh, ~ 1 1 ,  yes. 

A: And you got to defrost ywur refrigerator, you got to haul out your 
junk. 

Q: You're doing all this yourself? 
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A: I do everything--1 wash in the baseamt, I have a dryer that I can 
dry it, you Lcnaw. And I don't w h  as often as I used to. 

Q: k11, only one person. 

A: But, oh, I don't how. And my mail mans a lot to n~ and I still do 
genealogy mrk , 

Q: b yau p to libraries or do you do it mstly by correspondence? 

A: I have a cousin--oh, I've done everything in my line to h a w  the 
whereabouts of my hrrruer, older people. And I did all  I could to find 
out all about my grandfather and my gradmther on my father's side and I 
didn't go too far w i t h  it, &st other than Tennessee. W11, now this 
cousin of mine is a minister at the First Clhristh Church in Duncan, 
Oklahoma, he's got interested in it. And he goes to Oklahana City and he 
sent me, let's see, just recently a h m h  of stuff. 

Q: A &ole big melope here. Oh, his name is James Mth. 

A: Yes. He was named after my father. 

Q: b w  old is this causin? Is he younger than p? 

A: His father is younger than I am. 

Q: H i s  k thez  i s  yowger than you? (laughter) 

A: His father is. But his great-grandfather d my grandfather M t h  
are the saxe, 

Q: Oh, okay, 

A: And he has been to Oklahclma C i t y  and he sent me a bunch of stuff that 
he faund out up there. 

Q: Plnd it w s  things that you didn't h o w  about? 

A: Well, s c m  of it I did. 

Q: And sane you didn't? 

A: tbw, l i k e  my grandfather's father--I mt to Columbia, Missouri and 
got material frm there about my grandfather's father. And it was a 
census record of LaClede County, Missouri in 1850. 

A: That WLS what I got frm C o l h i a ,  Missouri. ell, I sent what I had 
then to this second cousin of mine that is the minister in Oklahoma. k t  
he's like rce, he rssn't satisfied w i t h  all that. ell, anyway, he's 
still searcluq and I went as Eaw as Bradley County in Tennessee, 
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A: Bradley, 

Q: Bradley-see , my hearing ' s not too good either. 

A: W e l l ,  mine's not either. It's not l ike  it was once. Bur onlrry 
mther ' s side I have material kom England. 

Q: kan  England? 

A: f i r m  -land. mere my mthew's f i r s t  people came from @land over 
here to the East Coast here in America. 

Q: Jbw far back does that go? 

A: W e l l ,  this lady in Massachusetts that is a relat ive of my folks, 
she's writing a book and then I'll find out -tly. 

Q: I'm anxious to see that book. I'll bet you are tm. 

A: Yes. Me and another lady that is getting material, she's firm Iowa, 
and I hear fran her real often. We ' r e  both wit* £or that book, 

Q: I'll bet. 

A: Ih fact, I think I have five books, h e  f rom the h e r  family, my 
grandfather's grandmther WEIS a W e r  and she cam- f rom G e m y  a d  I 've 
got a book on that W e r  family. Oh, I think I 've got five books. 

Q: W various families? 

A: Ch my relatives. But there's another one being published in 
Massachusetts. I hope that: lady will hurry. 

Q: I'm alwys anxious for a book to  car^ out. I had gotten 1910 LaClede 
County, Missouri census and it lists your father, ard yous brothers and 
your sister and some of your neighbors. I don't laurw if yau can read my 
writing here or not, I 've got the &ole census, I ' 11 copy it off for you. 

A: (reading transcript of census) My dad's second rime ms Harrison . . 

Q: Harrison--was that what it ws. Okay. You can read my writing? 

A: Now, Della was his secord wife. 

Q: us that her nmE? 

A: Della H-0-U-GH, But my mother was Lucy Elviza Cook. 

Q: I like k y  Elvira, that's a pretty mm. 
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A: Now, that Hooker. He was named after a minister. He hated that 
name, just like I hated mine. 

Q: You didn't  like the name Cliffie? 

A: W e l l ,  I didn't--1 've never liked it very tell. 

Q: Oh, I 've always thought it was so nice. 

A: Well, anyway this Hooker deal. bhen he want into the service you had 
to  use your f i r s t  wm and his f i r s t  name ws Ed& and ever since he 
has been in the sexvice, R called him E i m d .  h d  H e m  Claude and 
Clif f ie  Grtrude. 

Q: Gertrude. TJow, I m l d n ' t  have cared for that. Eut 1 l ike  Cliffie. 

A: And Jkatrice Blanche. 

Q: Mmxd was in the sewice, h t  , first b r l d  War? 

A: Oh, that w.s Margaret Lucille. See, and that w s  his second wife. 

Q: Yes, your mther was gone by then. 

A: My mother was a Cook. 

Q: I need to  get the 1900 census to get ywx mther, because she died in 
1903. 

A: Yes, she died in 1903, on bcember the third. 

Q: Yes ,  I ' 11 have to  get the 1900 census for that. ht I didn' t, couldn't 
get ahold of that but I thought, ~ 1 1 ,  you ndght like to  see that. 

A: So that's Mmrd. 

Q: SJas he in the First World M r ?  

Q: Did he go to Europe or anything or m s  he s t r ic t ly  . . . 
A: He wmt t o  & m e .  

Q: &, he did? 

A: Oh, yes, 

Q: Did he f w t ,  m s  he in fighting? 
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A: Yes, he WS a mhine gunner in Ekwe in World W a r  One. 

Q: Lb you have any pictures of him in uniform? 

A: Oh, yes. 

Q: Can ve copy SOE of those pictures after  while here hen w get done 
talking? I don't wed it ri&t nw, s m  other t b .  

A: Didn't I show you that  picture with my brother in  uniform, I think it 
was takm in Frame? 

Q: I don't remember. You may have. 

Q: & I l l  look a k e r  bit for that. k t ' s  go on ta lk  about this. Is 
there anything else on that census now that w . . . 
A: U11, you know how you'll think of your stepmother. That's my 
father's second wife and these tw kids here [the children by the second 
wi£e  as listed on the 1910 LaClede b t y ,  Missouri census] he died but 
she lives in St. M s .  I did get a birtlday card frm her. Eut they're 
not like your own. 

Q : No, It ' s di f  Eexent . Did ~ D U  just kid of keep in contact and &t 
w s  about all. 

A: At CZlristmasth. And now my birthlay, here she sent tre a card. And 
you know, when you don't drive like you once did, you don't always have a 
card to send k e n  you mt to send it. W e l l ,  I didn't  vhm Lucille's 
birtMay m s ,  it MS in June. An3 I really don't have a lo t  against 
1 But she wasn't lik my am sister, 

Q: I urderstand. I understad perfectly. 

A: k11, they're all one except UE. [notices her name is misspelled on 
the census record] d it 's C-L-I-F-F-I-E. 

Q: Yes, that's the way they spelled it--they spelled it wrong on the 
census. That's the way they spelled it. 

A: k11, do you h o w ,  I got a b i rWay  card and it ms GbI-F-F-Y. 

Q: Do you rewinher any of these nei&bors? I copied a few of the people 
that w r e  just beside you, just  the way they came on the census. 

A: Now, I 've heard of these Elders. I 've heard of than. b b n  my dad 
was Recorder. I've k d  of the Elders, But I don't remmber them. 
NCYW, I've heard of the Grays. 

Q: 'Phat ' s  all. I just copied a few there h r  the mrment. What township 
did your grandparents live in? I didn't fird them. 
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Q: N e b .  Okay, I ' l l  p look that up next. You can keep that page if 
yau mt just for your own records. Pdd that to yauw collection. 

A: Ib you have this at horn? 

Q: Ch, I 've gt the whole f i l m .  I bought the FJhole LaClede h m t y  f i l m .  
I can Elrd anybody that m s  there in 1910. ( l w s )  

A: I d d  rather my mother's n m ~  wid have been there. 

Q: Well, I ' l l  get the 1900 with yrxlr wther Is--I '11 get that later. 

A: Sne passed away in 1903. 

Q: Yes, ht she'll be on this other census. 

A: Decanber the t h i ~ ~ d .  We m s  living in Lebanon then a d  my dad w s  
Recorder. 

Q: At: the time your mther died? 

A: And I ' l l  never forget, w had a colored nurse for my mther. Mrs. 
Miller. 

Q: at m s  she like? Was she a . . . Did she keep howe and eve*, 
or was she just strictly a nurse? 

A: I think she was jus t  a nurse. 

Q: Did yau have a housekeeper then when yrxlr ~mther m s  ill? 

A: &, yes. Me always-at that time w e  called them a hired girl. 

Q: Hired girl. Okay. 

A: bmd I'll never forget, my mother died at hone. 

Q: Wet people did a t  that tine, didn't they? 

A: h d  that mrning try dad came in there and told us that au. mother had 
gone to k e n .  

Q: Zhat was hard. 

A: Ull , p u  wndered if she a s  even gone. hther she . . . 

A: lhat wezs the m e s t - - a  Eunny rarark, I thought, for my dad--and 
I ' 11 w e r  forget it. Wlt everybody loved my mother, 
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Q: Did they have the funeral at h? 

A: At the church, A t  the Christian Qturch. And the mimister that 
preached her funeral, his m w s  Clay--C-bA-Y. Oh, and then v h n  w e  
lived at Lebanon, w vent t o  the Christian k c h  and my second grade 
school teacher took mine and Blanche's picture on the school gourds 
there at Lebanon. 

Q: Now i s  that the picture with the big rock and everything in  it? 

A: She took crur pictures and I didn't  know any mre about the picture 
unti l  Qlrismastitrre. A t  that t h ,  you know, everybody had a Chwistmas 
tree at their church. And Miss Searl, her nam m s  Netta Searl, she p t  
that  picture on the Chrisbms tree for m. And that was the picture of 
Blanche  and I, And I don't haw how m y  copies I 've made off that 
picture, It was a darling l i t t l e  picture. 

Q: Yes. You said one tim you m t  t o  Colorado for a couple of years 
for y l ~ ~ y  dad's health . . . 
A: h Poppa w s  in office, his health began to fail,  And E decided 
to  go back to the farm and have a sale and go t o  Colorado. bk mt to 
Colorado fm, 1 believe ~ K O  years. But his health didn't get any better, 
so w care back t o  'Lebanon and he passed m y  there i n  Lebanon. 

Q: W e l l ,  tell me about going to Colorado. How old =re you thm? Do 
you remapbez the trip? 

A: Qll, w w m t  on the train. W t  out there on the train. 

Q: Did you take stock w i t h  ycru or had you sold a l l  the stock? 

A: Oh, w e  lived in town, 

Q: Oh, yau lived in t o m  at that tim. 

A: &, yes, WE lived in town. And I'll never forget one time--the 
penitentiary ws at Cannn City, Colorado a d  my Uncle Scott, who =S a 
high school principal at different places there in Missouri, he carre out 
there t o  Pueblo, Colorado where w m e  a d  mrked, oh, what did they 
call that--it was s c m  kind of big factory of sane sort. 

Q: In Pueblo? 

A: In Colorado, And he ms a school teacher and he came cut there a l e  
T ~ R  tiere out there and stayed w i t h  us a d  wrkd at that--kind of l ike  a 
Caterpillar place or somthing lik that--thatt s a l l  I r d r .  

Q: A big equipmt factory of s- kind? I don't wen how what's in  
Pueblo. Anyway, he wwked in  a factory? 

A: It m s  in Pueblo, Colorado. FJel l  , Poppa's health didn't get any 
better so E mt back to Lebanon then and had our h o ~  and everything. 
Ard before he passed away then he wanted B l a n c h e  and I to  go t o  Grandma's. 
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He m t e d  to know that w =re there. And e =re there a a l e  before 
he passd  away, af ter  school, 

Q: h t  did he do in Pueblo? Did he wrk or did he teach school out 
there? 

A: No, no. He bought a livery barn. 

Q: Oh, I how--horses and buggies and the whole thing. Yes, my grandfather 
had one. 

And those days they had hnrses. 

Do you b e  any pictures of that? 

It was called the Elk Horn Livery Barn. 

In Areblo, Colorado. 

Now, I don't haw whether w wnt to Fowler, Colorado first or Pueblo. 

bhat t b  was this? How old =re you? 

My dad died in 1910 and that was probably in 1908 or 1909. 

Mter your mther was dead? 

Yes, she passed away in 1903. And I was born five years--in 1895 you 

Q: Sounds l ike  a long time ago, doesn't i t ?  

A: Do you know that my sister passed away two years ago now and I have a 
letter that she had written to  rn and she says, "You know, = are aw£ul 
lucky that R have lived to be past eighty." And she passed away, I 
think at eighty-five. And here I am. 

Q: Still going strong. You ought to be good for a hundred a d  ten. 

A: You b o w  a t  Kenneth told me? 

Q: Hard to  tell. 

A: 'h, yuu'll live to be a hundred." ( l a u g h s )  

Q: Should ard easy. You're in g o d  health, 

A: They do that now. And at d i f f r e n t  times I thought maybe I 'd  get me 
a--this is what started it. Ib you h o w  Juanita Yates? 

Q: Yes, 

A: A l l  right, She called me up one day and she says, T l i f f i e ,  my son 
m n t s  me to  care t o  Lincoln at this . . ." Oh, i t 's  an apartment building 
out there on . . . 
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Q: Friendship Manor, out there across frm the high school? [in b o l n ]  

A: Yes. She wanted t o  go there, And I said, 'kll, I don't suppose 
I'll be able to  stay here forever. Doris and I w i l l  go and see about 
it." So she'd already been to see about it, so w e  mt over and w saw 
the roan and they =re lovely. And a n F y ,  Juanita had her roam across 
the aisle from where 1 could have a roan. 

Q: Me it a room or ws it apartments? 

A: An apartamt. It was luvely. It m s  really nice. W l l ,  I couldn't 
go then because w =re going to have our family reunion in  July and I 
didn't  mt to go until  after that. 

Q: Were did you have your family reunion? 

A: Well, the l as t  of July? 

Q: Fb. Where? 

A: Y o u m e a n  at that time? 

Q: Yes, &re w s  the reunion? 

A: Oh, w always h e  it around Springfield down there. 

A: Well, anyway, Juanita was wer there tm e e k s  and I kept hearing 
things about her-that she m s  going to COUE h, or that she had w e d  
f ran  that fousth floor @ere she had an a p a r m t  down to the second 
floor where the handicapped people =re. 

Q: She's not handicapped, is she? 

A: k11, I'd been hearing things. Well, I ' m  not going to have anything 
to do w i t h  hearsay, I ' m  going to  ca l l  the manager d ask him a b u t  it. 
And I said that I had heard that she had mxred down f rom the f a u r ~  floor 
to the second. Yes, he said she had mnred dow, but she m s  gone now. 
She mrved dom *ere the handicapped people Ere because she had a heart 
condition. That's what he said. Then I said, "I also heard that she was 
gokg to  move b. " He said, "She's already mxred . " 
Q: Then she didn't stay too long. 

A: I think she stayed tw web. 'kat done IE. 

Q: You w r e n l t  about to  . . . 
A: I had never thought of wing or anything. But now b think, it 
wld be s i l l y  i f  I m l d  me--you have to  m e  your fusniture--maybe 
the next: week I 'd have t o  go t o  a nursing h. 
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Q: Oh, I don't think so. I don't think you're going. 

A: (laughter) I don't think so either, ht w l d n '  t that have been 
s i l l y  tbugh. According to your age and everything and you'd have to 
m e  your W h u c e  and everything. A l l  ri&t. 

Q: I couldn' t starrd that m~ch campany. 

A: I couldn't s t a d  it. 

Q: I like people, kt wt in large doses, 

A: So I told Kerneth, I think i n  the spring, I said, '-11, I m y  go 
there, I don't know." Well, anyway, th is  f a l l  then, ICenneth says, Mom, 
stay * e  yau are." (laughter) That just settled everything w i t h  me. 
So I'll k here until they haul rre off,  And do yw how a t ?  I am glad 
that I got out t o  the mailbox twice a day to get my mil. That's good 
exercise k r  rte . [Her mailbox is a t  the end of a fairly long lane. ] 

Q: It is, it is. Now do you belong to a pinochle club or anything like 
that? 

A: Clh, heavens, yes. But you know, so m y  have passed away and like 
M a  Kirby, she's in Okl- w i t h  her d-ter--she's not a b i t  w e l l  
nuw. k , w don't have no pinochle club anpre.  

Q: Oh, yau don't. 

A: But p u  h o w  &at, once a year over here at Wapella the church has a 
pinochle outfit.  I guess they all play pinochle, Ard every spring then 
they invite everybody that m t s  to cane and you have t o  pay a fee, I 
think it m s  three dollars. W l l  , every spring then I go. 

Oh, I see. You still get to play pinochle anyway, 

And I believe the last t w  tines I mt, I got the hi& prize, 

(lilll&ter) You can still play cards with the best of them. 

I still lolrrw haw to  play cards. A d  I lave to  play. 

a, I like to play cards. 

Oh, I like it. 

lhe first thing m do when w hit Pat's wer there is get out the 
pinochle deck. (laughs) He's alwys ready for one mre gam, 

A: Yes, w like it. And Erica likes it just as wll as the rest of us. 

Q: Oh, she's samething else, I guess. 

A: And you know xhen I was hone, w used to play flinch and high Eve. 



C l i f  fie Smith Patterson 68 

Q: High five-now what's that? 

A: I don't how whether I even know haw to play it now. 

Q: a, ht it was a card game? 

A: &, yes. But my dad m l d  play w i t h  us, play with m kids. Now scm 
peaple d d n ' t  even allow a deck of cards in their h. 

Q: I 've heaxd that. 

A: I've heard that, kt w? played a t  b. And my Eather thought it ws 
all wigt . l t ,  

Q: I l i k e  to play cards, I don't see any harm in it. 

A: I don't think there's any harm in it. I tell you h t ,  see that deck 
of cards wer there? If it ' s about time for the mil, but not quite 
tine, I nray came there and shuffle that up ard play a game of solitadxe 
t o  pass the tim a=y. 

Q: b u  don' t b e  my t h  to be bored, do you? You've got sanething 
going every minute, 

A: I 'm never bored. W ,  l ike  this mming, I walked dam to  the milbox, 
now I got those m t y - s e v e n  cards, som that I msn ' t  expecting. So I 
wrote them a l i t t l e  letter, And yesterday mrning I think I mailed, 
well ,  I don't Irmaw, altogether I think I miled about fifteen. I think 
that ' s  a t .  But this mmkg I just  had tm le£t and I wmt and wrote 
than and took them dom t o  the milbox. 

Q: You'll probably get antmrs to  a l l  those. You'll have mail all 
winter. 

A: k11, mine ws really ansmrs to their cards. Because they nearly 
always m l d  write something, 

Q: Bll, maybe they'll  write again befbre the next birthday. 

A: Now, I even got one card yesterday. He says, "I 'm late." That m s  
frm m a s .  

Q: Maybe the mail is slow fran Kansas. 

A: k just wrote on the b i d e ,  and he said, '!Well, I'm late, but here 
goes " 

Q: At least he sent you a card. 

A: Now, my sister's W t e r  and her husband [brother] =re my s is ter  's 
twins, trut they're both married and they've got families a d  they're 
grdparen ts .  The FJhole clique wrote to rie. 
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Q: That was nice, 

A: And then this mnth I look for them. My niece, her daughter, and her 
son and his wife, they're going to  fly out here. I talked t o  Helen a few 
days ago on the phone-she ca l l s  m every ome in a while--but I had 
c a l l 4  her and I said, she said, 'We're going to  fly out ." I said, 
'.well, yq: ' 11 have to let me how where you're flying to so Kenneth can 
meet you. "Oh, " she said, '%r son ws going to  rent: a car. " 

I1 Q: &, just pick samething up a t  the airport. 

A: He ww going to  rent a car and then drive out. 'Iben they can c a  
and g~ when they want to. Now, i s  there an- else you want me to do? 

Q: Oh, I think that's probably for today, but I sure w l d  lik 
t o  cane back. 

E d  of Side W, Tape Tvm 

Q: First of all, = =re going to  talk abaut, ask abut Dale. He lived 
several different places. Did  you go v i s i t  him? Did you txavel quitje a 
bi t?  

A: Yes, Pam and I went out there. 

II Q: Okay, where did you go? T e l l  r re  about the t r ip .  

A: Well, Pam's ccmpany, G. E., wanted her to go to the southem part of 
California, on a business t r ip .  They wanted her busbard, Bill Doyle, t o  
go to  the northern part. U11, I don't know whether B i l l  suggested it to 
Pam, that she should get her Grandma t o  go with her. So Pan asked me i f  
I muldn't  lik to go. And I said, 'Yes, I'll go." And w'd go by 
plane. Axxi by the t h  that w was supposed to go, vie had a great s m  
here. It w s  terrible. I didn' t even h u w  whether I wuld wen get to  
go to Bloomington or not. But, anyway, Kenneth and Doris f inally c m  
wer and tbey tookm to Bloomington. But in the meanthe--let's see, 
haw w s  that now? Oh, Pam m s  going t o  drive t o  [from] Blootningtm to 
Qlicago ta get aur plane in Chicago. Instead the streets and everything 
WB so bad about that snaw VE had to  take a plane from Bloomhgton into 
Chicago, So e got into Chicago then and then VE had to  take a plane to 
Minneapolis. And in Mhneaplis we changed planes and got a plane and 
wnt directly then to  California. 

Q: Where did you go in California? 

A: Wilmington. Oh, no, into b s  Angeles. Wilmqton i sn ' t  far fkan 
there. That's where Dale lives, you h a w ,  And they raet us there at the 
airport. Pam wanted to  stop at the hotel that she m e  supposed to stop 
at there in U s  Angeles relative t o  her job that she m sent out to  do. 
Well, Dale and Betty then, ve drwe to  Wilmimgton at their haw you know, 
Then af ter  a few days, dter  Pam had done mst of her wrk, I think, s b  
wanted to c a e  out to  Dale's then. She cane out there then and then she 
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left Dale's then and rnet Bill, her husband. I guess maybe h h s  &@es 
and then they wnt sight-seeing. And thm T ~ R  had a certain day that 
was going to leave. Rut Pan says, "I w i l l  be right there and ~ ' l l  
back together, like v,e cam." Well, w e  got back there, w e  couldn't & 
Pam for a while, but after so long E finally fad Pam 4 then w had 
to find out about o w  tickets, Of course they a s  all paid for the 
everything. But whoever I was talking to, they said, '"Well, there's not 
roan Em you on the plane with Pan.'' And do ycru how, they escorted me 
to  another plane, and here 3: was away £cam Pam. And when I FFent in 
there, I said, "Oh, I sure hate this, that I've been separated £ran the 
lady that I drove in here with . "  And in about ten or fifteen minutes 
~ i l e  the plane n s  sitting there, here came a man in there and he said, 
'We want you on the other plane." And FR got back together. Arad then E 
rode that plane directly to  Chicago, I guess. b k l l ,  anyway, VE got to 
Chicago and then Pam got a car and we dxwe f r o m  Chicago to  Normal. In 
Normal &re they lived then. And that ws the end of that t r i p .  

Q: You almst got to  rnske the t r i p  by yourself. 

A: Wasn't that awful? Here they had nre on that other plane and I said, 
'!My gdness,  I don't how anythug about (hicago.'' And to  thbk they 
m l d  take me back there t o  Chicago. Oh, that ms the mst terrible 
thmg. 

Q: What did Pam say? 

A: Well, Pam was dumbfounded, just lik me. But all  I hew to  do h 
they said they didn't have roan for UE on that plane, they escorted UE to  
that other plane, And I just couldn't get over it. &en among the 
passengers I said, "I 'm just wrried about, to  think that they have 
separated me," And I don't h o w  how it happened, but here they sent that 
fellow in there after me. w got back together. 

Q: O'Hare is a scary place by yourself. 

A: W e l l ,  Pan h e w  all about everything, it seemed lib. Our suitcases 
and werythmg C ~ I E  in there, mu know, and she ws there to  pick than up 
and everythin%. And she knew about getting the car to  drive out to  
Normal. 

Q: Pam traveled a lot. 

A: Oh, she done fine, 

Q: Didn't Dale live in New Orleans or sameplace, did ywu go down there? 

A: Yes, w went there. writ there one winter and stayed quite a 
bile . 
Q: W t  m s  it like? 

A: It was Lake Charles. Rut he had to  travel to New Orleans on account 
of his job, you know. 
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Q: Did you and &me go? 

A: Yes, both of us. We drove down ard I done a lo t  of the driving and 
nuw I don't even drive, Isn't that terrible? 

Q: Wt was it like, & a t  did you do in Lake k l e s  where it ws warm? 

A: W e l l ,  k~ went down t o  the ocean a d  waded and bathd ard w did 
attend church, I think just one t h  while k e  t ~ a s  down there. Right now, 
I can't  think of rmch else v e  done. 

Q: Okay. I m a  going to ask-I think the mst exciting thing that arer 
happened at M t .  Pulaski m s  probably that railroad explosion. Do yau 
r d r  that? 19581 

A: Oh, w lived out there on Route 121. We w s  there for thirty-tw 
years a d  e cmld still have been there, but I mean that it w s  tine £ow 
us to re t i re .  W e l l ,  the thing of it was, = e r e  home, but it did do 
samething to an upstaixs whdow, I don't know whether it broke the 
window or . . . something happened to windows upstairs. That ms the 
only bad effect w had. But, you hew vhen E vient to  M t .  Pulaski that 
averhead bridge [Route 54 goes over Route 121 just east of M t .  Pulaski] 
vas a l l  ruined, Isn ' t  that awful? 

Q: Did you hear the aplosion out there? 

A: k never heard it. 

Q: %y said it was heard for so 5ar. Did you feel the vibrations? 

A: Well, w felt the effects on our house. Ard it done something to a 
window upstairs, but that's all I can think of. We -re just lucky that 
w e  didn't have any wre d-e. An3 w? was out about, tell, you know 
a r e  Narita ms? [Narita was a -11 country elevator along R o u t e  121 a 
few miles east of Mt , %laski. " 1 

Q: Yes, 

A: kll, w -6 up a li t t le closer t o  Mt. Pulaski, e m s  about the 
s e c d  howe up £ran Narita on Route 121. 

Q: Yes, there's a new house there now. 

A: Ard w lived there when Route 121 w s  built.  

Q: a t  wa~  it l ike  W they bilt it? 

A: W e l l ,  you see m famd right up next to  the railroad. Let's see 
v h a t  can I tell you? And the hardroad wasn' t hilt then. 

Q: Was it gravel? 

A: I guess it ms.  I think mst 05 & roads =re gravel. But they was 
people that lived . . . they cam fran afar,  I don't how far, to  mrk on 
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t h a t  road. And of all the sewFng I ever done, I never ~ 3 s  best out of 
a n .  only one of Ulem wrker s wives. (laughter) No, I say never, 
there ws twice. There m s  another ram that came up fxm the Sauth to a 
place just south of us and his mrk m s  up there for s m  reason, I know 
what. But anyway he had sanething he m t e d  altered, now I don't even 
think what it a s  now. Ard he never did pay m. Now that that her 
bbard w r b d  on that Route 121 a d  that man f ram the southern part of 
the state, they're the only tw that never paid me. 

Q: (lau@ter) Did they use mtorized equipmt when they built the 
hardroad? 

A: Oh, yes, I think they m l d .  You see, w h r u d  right up next to the 
road and our house m s  quite a ways back, k t  rn had to walk d m  or 
ride down to the hardroad to get our mai l .  Our mail was just across the 
road to the milbox. 

Q: Ckr the north side. No, it muld be the east side of the road, m l d n ' t  
it? [Route 121 angles northwst to sautheast from Mt . Pulaski to Decam, 1 

A: Yes. North vas toward k a t u r  . [South w s  toward Decatur , I  S b e  
I've been over here I have to stop ard think about the directions. 

Q: It's different, because the roads run straight. 

A: It Is  different, Now that way (points) is east. 

Q: Yes. 

A: Over hare, it was that way. I probably got W 1- out. Wit: I 
didn't--talking about this-- [the 1910 LaClede Carnty, Kssouri census] 
how my steprother's age. And you h o w  she used to be our hired girl, 

Q: She did? Well, a lot of than did that thou&; they e r e  there and 
alrdy hew how to take care of the kids. 

A: And I see here when my Eather a s  forty-three, that was the age that 
he died, she was tmnty-seven. Now just image that. 

A: Now I didn't know that until I saw that. [The 1910 LaClede Caunty, 
MLsscmri census enmeration] A d  then when I saw that my dad--what vats 
he--proprietor of that. He m s  a sick man, he d i d  in 1910. That's 
where that is, 1910, 

Q: Yes, ht's the date? Tlo I have--no, I don't have the exact date, I 
guess, that census kas taken. 

A: Well, he died in August, 1910, 

Q: I think the census m s  taken in June. 
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A: And you see, after  he m s  Recorder of LaClede County, w wmt to  
Colorado for a couple of years for his health. And that's why he left 
the office then. 

Q: Wt did he do in Colorado? Do you recall? 

Q: h t  rested? 

A: Oh, I think it msst h e  been samething like this pool hall  deal. I 
think he omed a livery outfit. N m ,  I k i d  of remrhr that. Wlt 
before that he had vhen he w s  a young man, for *teen years. 
Eken tau&t before I m s  born, and then he m s  Recorder for the four 
years. And then tcm years he decided he'd better g to--you know people 
mt to Colorado for their health, And I guess it didn't do him rmch 
good so he just caw b. JfIe caw to  Lebanon. NDW I dan't knowtjhat 
else I can tell yw. 

Q: ell, I guess that: cuvers that. Do p u  r d r ,  did you go into Mt . 
Pulaski. after the explosion and look around as soon as they m l d  let you 
back? 

A: The mrst thhg that I thought about it m s  that averhead bridge that 
you go d e w  from aur place to Mt. Pulaski. It ms just riddled. I 
think that to re, that w s  the wrst disaster. Course I imagine there 
w a s  a lot of people in M t .  =laski w s  affected som my. But personally 
I don't know. 

Q: Were there any storms or tomadoes or anything that you ramher  
particularly? 

A: Yes. Maybe yau don't r d r ,  but there was a tomado that catre 
f i a m  C o m l d  and hit Mt .  Pulaski and Chestrwt. And I believe it killed 
a child in Chestnut. [April 19, 1927, Hobart Baker d a Goodwh child 
Ere killed i n  CInestrmt at  the grade school when it w s  struck by a 
tornado] 

Q: I think there was--at the grade school. 

A: Now that's about all I rgllanber about that tornado. And it didn't 
a f k t  us, But it care thraugh Cornland, M t  , Pulaski and Chestnut, And 
I believe . . , seem to rre like this l i t t l e  kid k i d  of d e r e d  out 
mireway or another *ere he shouldn't, but he got killed, &ever it 
kW.8 . 
Q: Was there one that ~ n t  through Narita about 19502 Naxita, Heman . . 

A: Probably, maybe it w s  the same thing. Oh, I don't know, that's 
pretty close to re you know. 

Q: I was going to say that ms down in  your nei&hboxhood. But yw don't 
ramher any paxticularly that got weal close to you? 
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A: A l l  that I remem'ber is that one that came fim Cornland. 

A: And I expect you r d r  that. I imgine you remember that u h a ~  it 
carre out and hit M t ,  PulaskL and hit that overhead bridge. Ard that m s  
a c-t &fair. Psld that was just riddled. 

Q: Yes, that ws with the explosion. 

A: Smethbg along there, sarrvething about a train. Now how was that? 
Seems to me like it m s  it m s  f rom that explosion, I don't h o w ,  but 
s e d  like there w s  a train on the tracks near that werhead bridge. 
A d  didn't it k i l l  a m? 

A: I think so too. 

A: 'Ihat ' s like that sew-. You don't think back. I think it did. I 
think it killed one of them railroad men. [actually tw mn *re killed] 

Q: Did they ever find out what caused the explosion? 

A: wasn't it fran a car on the railroad tracks? 

Q: I don't lazaw, I just wndered if you h e w .  

A: I don't hew, 

Q: It's been so long ago. 

A: You half-way rPmPmbP_r that stuff. And as I say, it 's like the sewing, 
dwn they ask me abut that, I don't know what sewing they're thinkhg 
about, h t  I said, '!Now, i f  I saw it I'd hm it.'' 

Q: You'd how dm it was? 

A: bk11, is there anything else? 

Q: ell, *en the boys =re in schml, did Dale go on to college like 
knneth did? 

A: He didn't think he m t e d  to. And he had a cousin that wnt in the 
navy a d  he thou@, 'Well, I'll go in the navy tm, just like Carl." Or 
lh--oh, what is his -3 Oh, I can't think of that boy's nam. 
(laughter) Clyde. 

Q: So Dale went into the navy. Md he serve during the war? [World Mr 
11 I 
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A: k11, now h t  is that country that just now our country is recognizing 
then, and he WLS over there at that tb? h t  a s  the nam of that 
ccuntry, they didn't  think that aur country treated than exactly right 
when they care h, and just lately they've been recognizing them? And 
they made big plaque in  their honor? 

Q: I can't care up with it. Is it South k r i c a  or &ope? No idea. 

A: khat was one of them wars that they--finally had to call-the President 
finally had to  call our mm home? 

Q: Viet Nam? 

A: Yes, that it. 

Q: Couldn't cam up with it. Dale w s  in V i e t  Nam? 

A: He w in V i e t  Nam. A d  he finally got a disability discharge d 
now he's living in  Klmington, California. 

Q: Pat mt to college. What inspired him? 

A: Oh, yes. You h e w  Wesley Carter, didn't you? 

Q: I lcnaw ks. 

A: Well, Wesley w n t  uver there to Lincoln College right away. Wlt you 
how it was the time of the depression and Kenneth's dad thought, 'Wl, 
just wait another year." Which he did. All right. Kenneth wanted to go 
aver there to  Lincoln College, tJhich he did. And I says, 'Well, brmeth, 
I want you to go. I want you to go. And you dad can pay your tuition 
and I'll bug )our books w i t h m y  sewing." A d  that's the way he v m t  to  
college . 
Q: And he mt tm years to Lincoln? 

A: Yes. And that's where he mt Doris. 

Q: I 'm glad he did. 

A: M l l ,  they make a pretty god couple. 

Q: I like them. 

A: Now, is there anything else? 

Q: N11, after  you got the boys all through school and off to the m y  . . . 
A: Oh, the reason--Kenneth m s  called to  be exmind to go into senrice 
a d  before that--let's see, what's the name of that stream wer there on 
the other side of Chestnut &ere people go and jmq off fran the bridge 
into the mter?  h t ' s  the IME of that . . , 
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Q: Salt Creek. 

A: Well, I guess that m s  it. A l l  right. Kenneth e n t  aver there to 
Salt Creek one day d he dwe into the mter and he injured one of his 
ears. So w? didn't do anything but take him to D r .  Balding in Ihcoln to 
a ear a d  eye specialist and anyway after that then he m s  called to be 
exmined fix the sewice. Well, he mt and was eramind and he came 
h, And he said, 'Well, b r a ,  I don't have to go." "Oh," I said, 
"good ," Kenneth said, 'Well, I don' t laow whethex you'd ca l l  it good or 
not." That m s  e m t l y  the remark and I thou& that was s e e t  of him. 

Q: But I 've been glad he stayed hme. 

A: W e l l ,  any mther m l d  be. And I'll never forget that, And another 
thmg I won't forget, Dale helped his dad a lot  in  fanning, Kenneth w s  
my help. Sa~tiaoes they'd mt Kenneth to  help. h e  day the mn =re 
out and I think Kenneth was afraid they WS go* to call him and he 
said, '!Man you t e l l  than that  you need me.'' I told them, I told them, I 
said, "I need him." (laughter) But I'll never Eorget that either. And 
I'll never forget what he said abaut he said about that army deal, or 
mll, I don't know &at sewice he muld have been in, &st I was so happy 
that he didn't have to go. He didn't how whether I should feel that way 
or not. 

Q: h t  he taqjht school all through the war. 

A: Oh, yes. Ard the day he got his school, he could have gotten tm 
schools. He could have gotten one south of Mt. Pulaski and he could have 
gotten one over here next to  the distr ict  where Doris tau&t, Oh, and 
yau h o w  then a umried wcm w s  lucky to ever get a school so Kenneth 
d Dxis didn't mt to  t e l l  about their marriage, And Doris got that 
school and then &en Kenneth had a chance to get a school in the next 
distr ic t ,  he took it. W e l l ,  then after so long, Frances [JiIdmI decided 
that she wuld anmume their wdding. And she invited several of us 
over there and I know W s  and Elsie [Carter] was uver there. I think k s  
and Elsie was there, I h o w  either Wesley and Charles, his brother w s  
there, But anyway, that's when they atmowxed it. Ard you know, Doris' 
dad said to Kenneth and Doris, wll, he said it to knneth, I guess, "I 'm 
not telling yau &at to do, but if you mt to farm this place, you can 
farm it, and not teach school. k t  that's up to you. I ' m  not telling 
you what: to do." So they took to the farming. And then I think, didn't 
Doris teach a year or tcm afterwards, up here on the corner? [Tabor 
school] 

Q: Yes, she taught a t  Tabor. 

A: And do you know, if I r d r  right, before Doris took her las t  
school sanre of the directors, I think I ' m  rip@, the directors told her 
if she mted to teach again there, she could have a salary to her liking. 
Nm wasn't that sorrrething? 

Q: She m s  a pod -her. 
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A : Ch, she' s thorough in anything she does. 

Q: I wax to school to her. 

A: r&, she's good a t  anything. She's a good cook or an-. She'll 
cook things, pie or soxething ard she'll  send it over to  w, you h a w .  
And the other day durn she hew 1 was wing to have capany she sent a 
big paper plate dishful of candy that she'd made. Last ni&t she and 
kmth -re wer here. 

Q: No, you can't beat h i s .  

A: kll, I don't think you can beat either one of them. 

Q: ( l e t e r )  W e l l ,  no, no. I don't either. 

A: But of course Kenneth is mine. But that's exactly the way I feel 
about it. 

Q: I think I like Kenneth better than I do some of my blood uncles. 

A: Oh, I think Kerrneth is a wderful boy, 

Q: I want to ask a question-I heard a story a long tim ago that maybe 
when Kenneth was pung he ~rd.&t have nxn away, Is that true? 

A: I nwer heard of it, You man you say run around? 

Q: Run away. Run amy fimh.om, not run ad. 

A: &, he did. I want to tell you--you've heard of the Scroggins araund 
M t .  Pulaski, the e r e  in the bank. All ri&t. A grandson of the man 
that ran the bad there in EaC. Maski, after school was art he said, 
'Xenneth, le t ' s  just tale a l i t t l e  t r ip  out to  my aunts in Wshington," 
In & state of Mshington. Oh, Lord, I how all  about that. Fhat was 
the name of that kid, his last n e  a s  Scroggins? W l l ,  anymy, his 
aunt lived out there in Wshington, J3e said, ' k t ' s  take a t r i p  out 
there," And they mt on the train, it just wrried me to death. 

Q: Did he tell you he was going? 

A: He xas going w i t h  this Scroggins boy and he ws a nice kid, you b o w .  
But whoever -t--ard that p r  kid, d-m he got haare, he had lost 
weight. 

Q: He was thin anpay. 

A: And I think the boys wuld w r k  for food that they got on the my. 
W n ' t  that the craziest you ever heard tell? 

Q: Did they hobo rathex than pay their my? I man did they , , . 
A: They txtmned their vay. 



Cliffie Smith Patterson 78 

Q: Yes, that's what I mndered. 

A: That just beat anything that I ever heard t e l l  of. 

Q: Did you h o w  he tikls going to  do that? 

A: Well, after he had lnade up his mjsd that this Scroggins boy mntd 
him tn go w i t h  him, I thought, 'Well, he's in gmd company." Oh, of 
course I didn't wmt him to  go. 

A: But when he carne back, he t ~ a s  thin. 

Q: He didn't eat too ell, then. 

A : ell, he didn't eat too wll when he got hane, because you how if 
you don't eat for quite a k i l e  your stomach mn' t  stand for it. 

Q: He didn't do that again, did he? 

A: W e n s  no, J3e m s  tickled to  death to  get home. (laughter) Can't 
kids do samething? 

Q: I can't believe. 

A : And W t h  always had good company. But a n ~ y  , after Mr. W b a c h  
told him, he says, "If yau writ to £am, yrm can." And I think Doris 
either taught one or t w  years after that .  I believe she did. 

Q: Yes, she did, 

A: And then she decided she m s  going to  quit and as I remaher it, one 
of the directors told her i f  she wanted to  keep teaching they'd give her 
a salary to her liking. I knuw she's @. I know she m s  good. I know 
that. 

Q: After you d Herve wved wer here, did Herve go ahead and do farming 
at this place? khat did he do? 

A: Remaher, WE ms on that place wer home fbr thirty-tw years. bk 
didn't even have a contract arrd s \ ~  didn't have to  m e ,  but it ms  tin^ 
that w c d d  r e t h e .  k11, w -re up close to  seventy, ytru M ,  sixty 
sornethimg, he mtd to retire.  k didn't have to  tmve or anything. Wlt 
Kenneth said to us, ''Well, vhy don't you carve wer here. I'm having 
ixouble w i t h m y  hired man." Or men, mybe he said men. Hixed men, But 
anyway, he had me hired man and seerad to me like the hired man n s  
frm-what's the name of that l i t t l e  old burg wer here? 

Q: Midland City? 

A: Yes, Midland. And he told Kenneth that he didn't mt to mrk anymore 
that the Lord told him mt to  wrk on the farm. Now that's the quality 
of help that he had. Nowadays, I guess you can get pretty good help 
because they need the wrk. 
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Q: I don't think they mrk any harder. 

A: But msn't that s ~ ~ ,  And that is the reason that c \ ~  cam wer 
here, The very reason. And Carter w s  wing. I always get a &isms 
card from W s  and Elsie, I alwiys do. Wlt, anyway, w mt at Frances and 
they anmnmcd the d d h g  there. And the kids Ere already married. 
kt it s e e d  like the wmm m l d  have a tim3 getthg a school because 
she was m a r r i e d .  You h o w  it ms kind of depression t h o  So that 's  how 
it all happened. That was how canle us here. Ard like I said, dif  &rent 
tines I think now, Juanita Yates, you how her, don't you? Well, she 
called one day and she mted to go over there to that, oh, what's the 

of that place out there at the edge of Lincoln? It's for people 
that can do their om wrk, you how. h t  is the mire of that? 

Q: Oh, the hiendship House. 

A: &Fendship Manor, yes, It's nice. All right. Juanita had to  go a 
couple of e e k s  before I m s  thuikhg about going because IE was having a 
reunion mer a r d  M t  , Pulaski. k11, Juanita e n t  wer there, She m s  
over there tm weks, And I'd been heaxing thbqp that maybe she didn't 
like it. And she was cmhg back to her hare there in M p s v i l l e .  
Well, yau begin to  hear things ard you m d e r  i f  i t 's  ri&t, so I didn't 
do anythug but call the mnager wer there at that Friendship b r - -  
it 's a nice place. And the room that w d d  have gotten had never 
been used, it ws that new. If a £ellow m t e d  to m e  over there, that 
muld have been a l l  right. But now at my age, i f  I have t o  go an-e 
maybe I'll be bad emu& to have to  go to  a nursing haw, I don't h a w .  
But i t 's  like Kenneth said, ''Man, you just better stay ri&t here." And 
after I heard him say that, that ldnd of settled my idea. 

Q: You're used to this place. It f i t s .  

A: It's not lik it ws when you had yow hme together. 

Q: No, it never w i l l  be. 

A: It never w i l l  be, but I believe it muld be wrse someplace else. 

A: h d ,  I've learned-at first, I f e l t  a l i t t l e  bit afraid. 

Q: I mild. we all W d .  

A: And I didn' t--if I 'd wer  go at night, then I'd want to search through 
the home. Did you we: do that? 

Q: Yes. Yes. 

A: Well, anywy, mytime that I 've wew searched through the house, the 
basemnt a d  the upstairs and domstairs, d e r  the beds. Now just 
imagine such as that. I never Eound anything. Now I'm getting to where 
I don't even search. 
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Q: (laughter) Probably m'body ' s ping t o  come anpay, 

A: kt I d d n ' t  think I'd fird anything, kt it was l ike  this, you 
just felt  a little better. You just hew a t  it was like. And as m y  
tines that I have seawched, I mean, I 'd  just go and look, I 'd  take the 
flashlight an3 look. And now I don't like to  go at ni&ht. It's not good 
for you to be gone at niat when you're alone. 

Q: . You don't drive anynore, do you? 

A: Ard I don't drive anymxe. And the thing about our car, when E 
hadn' t h d  the car too long, but Herve msn' t a very good driver anycore. 
You could tell he wsn ' t  driving too good. Atxi s h e  I 've had my 
operations on my eyes. Now I can't think what the n a u ~  of them is. 

Q: Cataracts. 

A: Cataracts. Had one taken off three years before the other one. 
After I had just cme eye to  drive, I didn't drive, Then after three 
years, had to have the other one taken off, then I didn't drive again. 
And I just said t o  &me one day, he just w n ' t  too good. I said, 'Thy 
don't w just sign that car wer to knneth?" And that's what m did. 
bk didn't charge him nothing, w just signed it ewer to him. Ard anytim, 
I only ask d-m I real ly  d somew--you'd be like that too because 
yr~u don't wnt to bother. But they have never refused m. Anyth I 'd  
have to. Now, Sue Manre1 aver here, I think they're in Florida naw, they 
=re going to Florida for January and Feburary, but she called rn up one 
day, she said, ''Cliffie, I want you to p w i t h  me up to the Senior Citizen's 
doings up there at the Christian Ctrurch a d  I've been going there ever 
since," A l l  right. Last winter Sue and B i l l  *re in  Arimna at B i l l ' s  
sisters, she later d i d .  Well, they m t  out there ard the m died 
while they =re out there. Rermber that? 

Q: I don't remember. I don't know dm B i l l ' s  sister mrried, 

A: A d  then she cam b with B i l l  and Sue and she later d i d  here. 
She's B i l l ' s  s ister,  I can't think of what: her name was, 

Q: No, I don't ranember her name either. 

A: There's so rimy things yau have to  think of, I can't wen think of 
their name. Well, anyway, then, a£ter her ping out there, after I 
started w i t h  %.e I just f v e d  Sue Sue be going all the tine, but h 
didn't, p knw, she didn t go all the time. One time--listen, they 
wn' t  allow r i ~  to stay out here i f  there's sareplace I mmt to $. ery 
Kirk or W y ,  they're ping to  send after m. I nean, that a the way 
theyare, I ~ a n e t i a o e I ~ n ' t g o i n g u p t o t h e S e n i o r  Citizen's 

whether p u  haw Hilda Jbnphrey? 

i 
outfi t ,  I said, ''I didn't  W I 'd go.'' And the minister called out and 
he said, 'We're sending sorebody out after you." Eut nuw, I don't h o w  

Q: No, I don't think so, 
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A: U11, she l ives in  Clinton. And she's got a f a r m  out, I think mt 
too far fim here. &It anyway she and I think her aunt and another lady 
c-s to that Senior Citizen's doing in Waynesville every t h  they m t ,  
once a rmnth. A d  she cares right by here and she picks xae up, 

Q: Is she John Jhqhrey's wife? Hilda? 

think that's Ruby, i s n ' t  it? 

Q: , I can't k e p  them straight, I don't now. 

A: Well, Hilda was the only child of this Humphrey couple and they 
passed away, and she does o m  a farm but she lives in Clinton. k t  that 
Ruby Jhmphrey, I think she used to  l ive a r d  here sumwhere. U s  it on 
Route 101 

Q: Yes, that big hause up by Hallsville, 

A: Anyway, my birtMay they both send me a card. I got twenty-seven. 

Q: bhat do you do at the Senior Citizen's? What goes on? 

A: Oh, dm my campany m s  here, they mnted to  go to church. They're 
pretty good church-goers. I said, '!We w n ' t  stay for Sumlay School ," 
because I figured w ' d  have hame and get dinner. 'Ihey mtd t o  take m. 
out, kst no, I lnad planned my dinner. A d  they wmted to  stay for Sunday 
School. Now that Val, her father is a minister a d  they enjoyed that 
Sunday School. %y just lwed it. You mnderd what they do. W e l l ,  
one tb they either take us on trips or they have an entertainer from 
sawhere and = always have a god dinner. And w- u ~ t  up there around 
10: 30 in Wynewille and before, oh, l ike one time R mt up there to  
that  plant up there a d  Clinton, 

Q: Oh, the nucleax p m x  plant? 

A: And rn mt ---isn't there a house &re you can entertain--11, VE 
mt there. Atxi w had our dinner up there. Ard then after that saw 
lady drwe around in a big van and picked us all  up and took us al l  
arourd the plant and s h d  us the plant. 1 i t  That happened that 
day. And then another time--oh, and ordinarily = play b%o £ran ten 
o'clock till--let me see, how is that? No, E go up there at  10:30 and 
w play bingo till time fnr d m .  

Q: You eat there, at the church? 

A: bk eat right there, yes, And then, I'll have to  tell you, not too 
long ago--- t h i s  Dixie Fbmm is our W a y  School teacher-ard she's a 
part-time teacher at Olympia School. [Atlanta, Wynesville, lklean and 
Stanford Hi@ Schools are naw combined into Olympia Hi& School, Stanford, 
I l l inois]  Now she don't teach w a y  day, but: she's called to  teach, yau 
b. 

Q: A substitute teacher? 
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A: Ybu how her? And she's a god teacher. k11, then Sunday then she 
said, "I h e r  i f  any of you d d  mt to go s h r e  , . ." I so 
disinterested with all my c-y and all, -place, I believe it was up 
there around N o d  or samething, a d  they put on sarne W of a pageant. 

Q: Oh, 'The Passion Play"--no, not 'The Passion Play." 

A: It w somthing they have it different dates in  December. 

Q: Probably 'The Ussiah." 

A: And if enough of us wanted to go, they'd take us up there. An3 that 
isn't all--= tent up there at that Olympia  Hi& School a d  this Dixie 
~~, she teaches up there part of the tine too, she's a school teacher. 
She wanted us all to go up. A l l  of us that wanted to  go cmld to to the 
high school play. And  I want t o  tell you that thbg m s  a wnder. You 
h, the school is  big. 

Q: Ch, i t ' s  huge. 

A: It ' s a lovely . . . a d  *re they had their play was a big affair. 
Ard it had a British setting. Ard there w that ];ondon clock . . . 
Q: Q Ben? 

A: Big Ben. %re it m s  paintad on that. And l i s ten,  our tickets =re 
all paid for and all  of us got to  sit dom ri&t in the front seats. 

W d n '  t beat could 

A: And another thing, nearly every time w ' d  go up there, to Wynesville, 
and have ouw outfit there, w e ' l l  have our b l d  pressure taken and a year 
ago E had flu shots. None of it cost us a thing. k w  i sn ' t  that something. 
(ape stopped) 

A: [Mldng about her son, Dale] . . , discharge. ~ 1 1 ,  they may have 
a reason, I don't lam, But his wife OMIS tm apartmeslt hi ldings .  

Q: In Wilndngton? 

A: In Wilmington. And they l ive  in  one of the apartments in one of the 
h h  of hi ldings .  I think she had them when they got mid and I 
believe they're in her name. I believe they are. k a u e  I image i f  
Dale d d  have an h o r r e  £ran than, his disabil i ty pension might: not 
amrunt to so uuch. I don't h. 

Q: Probably wouldn't. 

A: Maybe that's the w-n, I never wen thought of it before. But they 
=re hews when they got married. 

Q: Talking about the d l i t a r y ,  w =re going to  talk about your brother 
Clfle and the Flrst bbrld War. You said he was in the army then? 
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A: My brother? 

A: Oh, and Kenneth never has brought that picture wer--you're not going 
wer t o  Doris's are you? 

Q: ell, I can. 

A: We'll ca l l  wer there and see i f  they're b. I wish you muld tak 
that picture because the p i c m e  ws taken in &axe. And he w a 
machine-gunner . 

A: b e .  Ard at that time he was, I think d m  the m r  closed he was a 
sergeant, but he was supposed to  be made sarething else higher a littler 
later .  But he a s  a machine-gunner. And knneth w s  wer here one 
day--Kenneth sees anything he m t s ,  why, he bows E b m w i l l  give it to 
him. kll, anyway he saw that picture, 'Oh," he says, "I'd l ike  to  have 
that.'' And that's the reason i t ' s  wer there. And then after  you Ere 
here I said to  him, "Jean wuld l i k e  to  have a pichire of that picture." 
A d  he said, 'Ull, 1'11 bring it aver.'' Never of it any mre, 

Q: I'll comer him after dinner then. &s Clyde or Claude--was his name 
C l d e ?  I 've forgotten mm~s here. 

A: My oldest brother was lklnuxl Hooker, now imagine them sticking a rime 
Hooker. But he MS named afte~ a d s t e r .  Now wasn't that the craziest 
thug you ever heard of? 

Q: Nowhe's the one that wnt to m r ?  

A: Q1, yes. kt, he mt by the - of Fdrmnd, or Ed. *11, what 
else? 

Q: W s  he drafted ow did he enlist? 

A: Oh, he enlisted, 

Q: And early in the war. D i d  he write le t ters  home? What did you think 
while he was gone? 

A: He'd write my sister Blamhe and I letters and I have a letter that 
he had written to  me while he i a s  in Frame, And I well remember dxn a 
bunch of than came h c n ~  and they marched in Springfield, Missouri. 

Q: A parade? 

A: Yes. 

Q: I'll bet that wuld have been something. 
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A: A d  Blanche and I writ c u t  there to meet Fd and w saw him ard he got 
out of line. E W  that picture just about tells it al l ,  kt I want yrxl 
to call Doris axld see if she's going to be at b. 'Ihen p can W a 
picture of that picbxe,  A d  the frame of it. See, h e w  in the army, 
the fiane of it is  khaki-colored. 

Q: It m s  a real G. I, frame, then. 

A: kll, yes ,  but I did get the £rme after I got the picture, but it 
suedoes fit the affair. And it has a n k x i c a n  flag on it. Imean a 
picture of the &r:ican flag. k11, is there anything else to tell  p. 

Q: Well, I don't laww h t ,  uhat caraes to yotu: mind? Oh, I h o w ,  can 
you tel l  me n a ~ s  of sane of the ladies that belong to the Senior Citizens 
soup?  

A: Oh, yes, I could tell you. I guess I can, 

Q: I think= had Sue Furman, no, Sue Marvel. 

A: You wint sam rrore paper? 

Q: No, I 've got plenty of  pa^ . . . 
A: kll , gut down Ruby Wrnphrey, and Hilda Ihanphrey, Hazel Craig, k i l l e  
Coppenbaxger, oh . , , 
Q: Tlzat's dl right, m just mt a few nares here that come to m i d .  

A: Now, let's see, mll, Sue Marvel. 

Q: Yes, m have Sue back there. About how many of you are there? 

A: Oh, sarlletislles fifty or mybe mre. 

Q: My goodness. Are they all ficsa the Waynesville area? 

A: Same are from Clinton . . . 

lhd of Side k, Tape One 

Q: . . . kan this area? 
A: al, Fdith A t e b e r r y .  

Q: Oh, does she go? 

A: Yes, ma'am, 

Q: Oh, I lave Wth. 
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A: I lwe hew too. She's a d d y .  A d  Nellie Kindred , . , looks like 
I could think of a lot  of . . , a d  as I say there's a lo t  that I knaw, 
but I don't . . . 
Q: Psrvold kars , , . Joe Maddox' s , Millie Maddox' s father, are they in? 
Oh, Cora's the mmm's name, Cora M s .  

A: M a  Kirby did. *a's had tm strokes. She had one stroke before 
she l e e  a d  she left to go out to her dau&ter 's i n  Oklahara a d  she had 
anohr st~oke aut there. So Wava's mt g d .  [wll] 

Q: I wis going t o  say she rmst be pretty poorly, 

A: Marie Hamnitt did too. Oh, i f  I could just think. 

Q: No, that's £ke, you're doing just fine. 

A: Ellen Van Ness. 

Q: Yes, I 've heard the mm, mt's her first name? 

A: Ellen, E-LL-E-N. Oh, there's a Mrs. F'ields that I don't haw ni.lat 
her Erst rme is, 

Q: A lot of these ladies =re school teachers, e r e n ' t  they? 

A: Oh, and Josie Fbmm. I l ike  her, don't ym? Oh, and E t h e l  Riddle . . , Ch, I k n o w a l o t  of than. 

Q: Oh, that's a lot. 

A: I know a lot that I don't evenhow their names. And when= go 
places w don't pay for gas or nothing. 

Q: k b  pays for it? Does the county or haw is that Eurrded, do you lolow? 

A: I don't hm h t  I imagine it is frm donatbns to the church, I 
have no idea, k t  = never have t o  pay for anythin%. A d  t~ think that 
E mt to that high school play, set dow there in the front seats and 
w e  didn't have to buy our tickets. And PE get our flu shots and don't 
cost anything. Isn' t  that wderful? 

A: And you h o w  h t ,  dm-~ I f i r s t  heard of h s e  Senior Citizens, I 
thought, 'Well, I don't belong there." Ww that's exactly the way I 
felt. And after Sue called UE and mtd me to  go, I don't believe I've 
missed a tinae. 

Q: Well, &en you hear the wrds Senior Citizens you think of old folks, 
don't you? And you decided . . . and p knew you wren't .  

A: Needy. 



Cliffie Mth Patterson 86 

Q: You know you're not old. And yrxl how you're not needy. 

A: Ard listen though, there's a lot of people up there that are not 
n d y ,  but that was my opinion to start w i t h ,  

Q: Well, uwst of these n a e s  you've read are not needy people. 

Q: These are fine people. 

A: It's so nice that mith and Nelly come, Nelly Kindred. I l ike both 
of thm. Edith, different tines, and she wants us to corne back, but 
she's iwitd Kenneth ard Doris and ~lle to came in an3 play pinochle. 

Q: Oh, Edith is a pinochle fierd. 

A: And Fdith and I wuld be parmers, And she'd alwys have a lunch and 
everything. 1M = mt several t b s  there for a a i l e .  Ard p u  
lmaw baJ things kind of drag at. Rut dm I see her, she says, 'I 'm 
still looking for you." (lau&ter) Now right now, I can't think of 
another person's narr~ up there. &, what's E h r  Gehlbach' s wife . . . 
sam3tirnes Elaw: ad his wife came. 

Q: I couldn't cane up with her IMIE for a minute. 

A: Yes. 

Q: She's funny as a three dollar b i l l ,  

A: Ard you h o w  she c-s pretty often, but yau knuw E l m  looks awful 
bad. 

Q: W has for quite a Mle.  

A: Have you seen him--the last t h  he was up there, I thought he looked 
awful bad. 

Q: He's kind of contrary about going to the doctor, I think. 

A: Well, ke looks bad. He looks awful bad. But m w  I believe the last 
tm m-s that E had, I don't believe he's been there. But she wuld 
CODE. 

Q: bbat mnt through ywr mind when you saw that great big Olympia High 
School canpared to the school you in? 

A: Did I tell you that the school that I got, do know &at it paid 
mt a mth? 
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Q: Fb. You didn't tell re. 

A: Thixty-five dollars. 

Q: You mren't  going to get rich. 

A: Zhat was a lo t  of money then. And in fact, I think thirty dollars 
was abcut the l i m i t  of what they ms paying a r o d ,  but sameway or amther 
through -thing or another, I don't even r d r  what they said it 
WS, I got that five dollars extra, 

Q: I'll bet yrxl e r e  glad to  have it. 

A: Of course. And I boarded with my cousin and what ms it I paid a 
m t h  for board . . . either three m w e n  dollars, I believe it w s  
three, though. Oh, no, a mnth, yes, it dght have been seven dollars. 

Q: You still had sure mney l e f t  wer then, 

A: W n ' t  that sornethhg? And n m  I have h e r e d ,  and I don't knm, 
how RU& Poppa ever got. Usten to me say, 'Toppa. " Every t h  I say 
that w d ,  I think of antiques, (lau&ter) But you h o w  god and we11 
they didn't get very rmch. And I shrrwt3d you that picture , . . ~ 1 1 ,  I 
think yau took a picture of the sclaool that he tau&t? 

Q: Yes, but I'll have to take another me. 

A: Ard that was before I w s  born. 

Q: I can't believe the log school. 

A: Well, didn't I show the picture of the school that I mt to? The 
last yeax that my father taught I tent to school--that was my first 
school--and I vier& to school w i t h  him. He rode horseback to  school and I 
rode behind him. A d  p u  h c w  &en w 'd go along aaaong than trees, I 'd 
wder if a panther ws going to jump dom an us. (laughter) 

Q: Isn' t  it h y  &at kids think of? 

A: Eht there I WLS, I p s s  astride, on the back of that horse trotting 
along there, and I was wondering i f  a panther muld junp down on us. I 
can't think of nothing else to  t e l l  you. 

Q: ell, d ~ y  don't xe tale a a t e  a d  coyy sare picture and mybe 
you'll think of samething else. Or maybe I 11 think of sarae questions in 
the meantime, Is that at all right? 

A: Yes. 
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